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Five Year Financial Summary

AFRBGBE

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
BE20085F HZE2007F  HE2006F  HE2005F  #H E2004F
12A31H 12A31H 12A318 12A31H 128318
LEE IFFE IEFE HFE EFEE
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(E5) (E=5) (&57)) (E575)
HK’000 HK’000 HK’000 HK'000 HK'000
TER FET FHET FET FET
Turnover ]
— Continuing operations — BEGEER 40,064 30,314 27,238 22,380 18,459
— Discontinuing operations - BRIEEEER 2,674 45,752 44,962 43,260 47,530
42,738 76,066 72,200 65,640 65,989
Result £
— Continuing operations —BEREER
Loss before taxation B Al &8 (45,889) (35,015) (41,492) (22,813) (21,635)
Income tax FigHt (2,830) (959) (820) (322) -
(48,719) (35,974) (42,312 (23,135) (21,635)
— Discontinuing operations - BRIEEEER
Loss from discontinued operations BRIEKEEKCER (3,898) (38,871) (62,738) (239,801) (37,655)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of HEHE A A
subsidiaries (B1B) /s (87,531) 66,909 - - -
Income tax Prig e - — — _ _
(91,429) 28,038 (62,738) (239,801) (37,655)
Loss for the year KEEBE (140,148) (7,936) (105,050) (262,936) (59,290)
Attributable to: IUTATEGBESR:
Equity shareholders AREREREEA (140,148) (7,936) (85,187) (252,841) (49,757)
Minority interest D BRI - - (19,863) (11,095) (9,533)
(140,148) (7,936) (105,050) (263,936) (59,290)
Loss per share FREE
— Basic (HK Cents) — B (L) (3.31) (0.19) (2.69) (8.34) (1.64)
— Diluted (HK Cents) — BE OB NAFERH NATEAB NATEB NATEE NATEB




Five Year Financial Summary

AFRBGBE

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
20084 2007F #2006 #20054F 20044F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A318 12A31H
HK’000 HK’000 HK'000 HK’000 HK’000
FHT FHET FHET FHET FET
Assets and liabilities AEHAE

Non-current assets FERBEE 113,165 194,386 558,382 580,724 758,825
Net current assets/(liabilities) MBEE/ (BE)FE 19,264 66,463 (294,270) (252,539) (57,617)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE - - (160,000 (192,308) (320,755)
Net assets BERE 132,429 260,849 104,112 135,877 380,453
Minority interests D BRI (122) — — (19,099) (28,642)

Total equity attributable to RARRER A ARG GER
equity shareholders of the Company 132,307 260,849 104,112 116,778 351,811

The above figures are based on the latest published financial
statements, except for the summary of results for each of three years
ended 31 December 2006 and assets and liabilities as at 31
December 2004, 2005 and 2006 which have been restated its

presentation currency from Renminbi to Hong Kong dollars.

BIBBTT °

FREFHERGIIBATE s MERRAE -
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B E - DA K& 20044 « 2005F K20064F 12
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Chairman’s Statement

FRHBESE

The Company’s activities were overwhelmed by marked slowdown in
global economic activities and plunge in crude oil prices in 2008,
nevertheless, we have been working very hard to restructure our

portfolio and prepare ourselves for the next hike.

In Utah, United States, we see pleasant development in Grassy Trails
Qil Field after the first horizontal drilling took place in January.
Production has seen stable growth. However, during the same period,
the Brent Crude had plunged from USD92.18 per barrel in January to
USD39.95 in December. The gross profit margin was adversely
affected by the plunge of Brent Crude price which nose-dived by more
than 56%.

Buying opportunity has emerged while there was retreat in most of the
commodities prices and asset price in 2008. The Company has taken
the advantage to buy another small oil field located in Squaw Canyon,
the United States. Since then we have been investing mildly to rework
some old oil wells and we see a stable addition of over 100 barrels a

month.

The Company’s business in China was also hit hard by two
unforgettable events in 2008. The devastating 8.0 magnitude
earthquakes in Sichuan had sent all economic activities stagnant in
the area. The Company’s drilling activities and acquisition plan in Xian
had been disturbed for nearly 3 months. The heartbreaking tragedy
was soon relieved from unprecedented and responsive mobilization of
over 100,000 soldiers, police, medical officers and world humanitarian

organizations.

Another extravagant Chinese event drawing the world’s attention was
the Beijing Olympic Games held in August. Everyone in Beijing was so
concentrated and devoted to a successful Olympic Games. While the
oil and gas industry is highly regulated, getting permit and license in
relevant government regulated bodies during that period of time

became impossible.
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Chairman’s Statement

FRHBESE

Although drilling activities were interrupted, our staff in Xian had never
been busier than before by offering their help to local government
agents and our counterparts in the local oil industry. It was this kind of
relationship that we earned much respect and eventually completed
our acquisition of an ail field in Ganquan County, northern Shaanxi in
January 2009.

The Ganquan oil field consists of 86 wells with proven production. We
have been planning to add another 11 new wells in 2009 and we are
delighted to see the production stabilized at more than 1,000 tonnes a

month.

2008 was a tough year and we saw extreme volatility in commodities
prices which could be detrimental to a company’s income statement.
Therefore, the Board has decided to balance our portfolio by engaging

into clean energy power plant where profitability is relatively secured.

Going into the waste-to-energy business has never been a haste
decision. The Company has been doing research in the area for more
than a year. The Board is very pleased to introduce Zhongde Waste
Technology AG, a Germany listed company specialized in waste
management, as a strategic and technical partner in penetrating into
this area in the PRC.

In early 2009, the Company has entered into a conditional Agreement
to acquire a 30% stake in a Datong waste incineration power plant
which signifies our determination to be one of the leading players in
the field. We believe the Datong project will commence contribution in
the last quarter of 2009 and we definitely will see a more stable

income stream by addition of similar projects down the road.

After selling the natural gas pipeline in Xinjiang, we experience a one-
off loss of HK$91 million. The financial loss did not have adverse effect
on the cash flow and the outgoing project will no longer eat into the
profit of new projects which we have been acquiring in the last two

years.
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Chairman’s Statement

FRHBESE

We see the beginning of 2009 has been resilient, if market sentiment
improves and appealing projects emerges, the Board will be very
determinative. Year 2008 was challenging and difficult, however,
without our dedicated staff, we might not be able to see a more
healthy and balanced portfolio in our balance sheet. On behalf of the
Board members, | express my heartfelt thanks to Ms. Xing Xiao Jing,
our former Chairman, for her outstanding leadership in last few years.
Without her dedicated work in our restructuring and acquisition, the
Company might not be able to achieve a more healthy development in
the years ahead. May | extend my gratitude to all our hardworking
colleagues and my highest tribute to our Xian staff for their brave and

responsible endeavor before aftershocks subsided.

Kong Siu Tim

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009

20095 IS EIRETR - MM HERAFE
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EZZANETHAMCNBERREENRE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CELERE 2K

BUSINESS REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2008, Genesis Energy Holdings

Limited (the “Company” or “Genesis Energy”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recorded an increase in turnover from
continuing operations by 32.1% to HK$40.1 million (2007: HK$30.3
million) and loss from continuing operations was HK$48.7 million
(2007: loss of HK$36.0 million).

¥BEE

Bl £2008F12A31H A 1L gl e RIER B
RAR (AR Ik [8IFER]D) REHBA
BB AEEBEREFEXEBNLE
%A /540,100,000 7T * ¥ & F 1 K£32.1% (2007
F : 30,300,000/ 7T ) - 1 [A) HA 45 48 35 7% P 3N
# & 18 Bl /48,700,000 JT (20074 :
36,000,000/ 7T ) °

Turnover BEH

HK$ *000 2008 2007 Change

B (F) 1

Qil exploitation AR EE 4,206 294 1 1,330.6%

Natural gas and LPG ERE BB A BHE 35,858 30,020 119.4%
40,064 30,314 132.1%

Oil Exploitation 1l R

United States ES

The Group holds two blocks of ail fields in the United States. Both are
located in Utah namely, Grassy Trails and Squaw Canyon (Four
Corners Area of Colorado, New Mexico, Utah and Arizona). The
acquisition of Grassy Trails oil field was completed in June 2007 while
the acquisition of Squaw Canyon oil field was done in July 2008. As
both of the said oil fields have proven historical production record, the

investment risk has therefore been reduced.

In February 2008, we completed the first horizontal drilling on Federal
12-13 of Grassy Trails, and the proven reserve of crude oil on Grassy
Trails has been revised up to about 1.8 million barrels. However, due
to the unprecedented snowstorm in the region, the follow up set up
and rework of the supporting facilities have been seriously affected

and delayed. The production of oil has not been stable until August.

AEBEZEBAMBAEA  MEZLRY
fis ) - DRI EAESHE R ERBEKAHE (B
LR M - BB Z N - FREFETFINA D
FEHMNz WEAMERS) EEHAZK
f8 7Y 1200746 A FE A+ T 52 BHBCA Sl A 2 Ut
8 B PA2008F7 A ST B » BB Ealt M oh & A
ERTEREERSE  BHLRERKINERE
AR o

200852 » FAPI R B AL ) F 52 A 79 5% & fE 7K
B B H12-135% - [RE - B m A AR A
EEIMER] RLI180EM - T ANEZIM
BB EEANRRAE FRREBZIMEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CELERE 2K

Regarding the Squaw Canyon oil field, rework on the existing wells
has been done and commercial production has commenced since
September. According to our reserve report done at the end of 2008,
the estimated proven reserve of the said oil field is approximately
700,000 barrels.

Unfortunately, 2008 saw volatile energy price movements. Crude oil
prices rose to record highs — dated Brent reached US$144.22 per
barrel on 3 July. Following this mid-year peak, the unsettled financial
markets and wider economic uncertainty saw the price drop back to
US$36.55 at the end of the year. That has obviously affected our

financial performance.

China

As Chinese, 2008 was a year we will all remember. In the space of a
few months we went from the horrendous scale of a tragedy from the
massive May 12 Wenchuan Earthquake to an unprecedentedly
successful Olympics Games held in Beijing in August. Under this
changing environment, the Group only managed to have our first
drilling of test well in Xun Yi oil field, Shaanxi done in the fourth quarter,

which was initially scheduled in May.

Subsequent to year end, in February 2009, the Group has successfully
acquired the Liu Luo Yuan oil field located at Ganquan County,
Shaanxi. This is a producing oil field with over 80 wells and a stable
production of more than 1,000 tones each month. Due to the policy of
regulated oil price in the PRC, the ol field is expected to have a stable

contribution of cash flow to the Group.

Natural Gas and LPG

During the year, the Group has disposed of the natural gas pipeline
network in Korla, Xinjiang. The business of natural gas network in
Korla in the past few years had been unsatisfactory. Moreover, the
cost of gas supply is expected to substantially increase while the
retailed price is strictly regulated by the government policy of the PRC.
The Board considers it is in the interests of the Company to cease this
operation in order to minimize the increasing loss to be incurred by

this operation. The booked loss on disposal was approximately

MABERNEKAHE AFNEEIEET
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CELERE 2K

HK$91.4 million. However, the Board considers that this move could
reallocate the internal resources into developing other more promising
business, in particular the upstream business in the oil and gas sector

and our new business arm in the waste-to-energy segment.

The operation of gas refilling stations in the same area has experienced
gradual growth in past two years and its performance is supposed to
be relatively stable. Unfortunately, due to the expected substantial
increase in the cost of gas supply from June 2009, provision for
impairment loss of HK$10.8 million has been made for the business of

gas refilling stations for the year.

Waste-to-Energy

Subsequent to year end, in early 2009, the Group has taken its first
step into the waste-to-energy sector. We are acquiring 30% equity
interest in a waste incineration power plant in Datong, Shanxi
Province. Compared to conventional energy businesses, waste
incineration power plant operations are less prone to demand changes
and are not affected by fluctuated commodities prices. The Board
considers the investment in waste power will help drive the Group’s
business development towards a more balanced and stable portfolio
in the long term (details of the transaction has been set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 20 February 2009). At the same
time, the Group has formed a strategic alliance with Frankfurt-listed
Zhongde Waste Technology AG Industry, which has expertise in waste
disposal, and both parties together are prepared to actively pursue
viable business opportunities in new energy sectors. As Mr. Kong Siu
Tim mentioned in his Chairman’s Statement, this move has never been
a haste decision. With both energy demand and carbon emissions
rising, China and the world need every sustainable, affordable energy
source available. Genesis Energy is therefore intending to meet this
growing demand, entering into alternative energy businesses with the

potential to grow and compete far into the future.

BEZERRLEBANATEARERENHE
NBERAMPFPAAMKRZEL  LERBRIT
X2 EREBREMBPENEEDER
(Waste-to-energy ) 275 °
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CELERE 2K

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Result for the year

Turnover was mainly sourced from natural gas refilling stations that
recorded a turnover of HK$35.8 million for the year ended 2008,
representing a 19.4% increase comparing with that of last year (2007:
HK$30.0 million). The revenue of HK$4.2 million was contributed by

the oil exploitation in oil fields in the United States.

The consolidated gross profit in 2008 amounted to HK$11.9 million,
representing an improvement as compared with those in the past few
financial years. The management has implemented stringent cost
control and the administrative expenses have slightly reduced by 7.5%
to HK$36.5 million (2007: HK$39.5 million). The loss for the year from
the continuing operations amounted to HK$48.7 million (2007:
HK$35.9 million); among which, the impairment loss for the operation
of natural gas refilling stations amounted to HK$10.8 million. The loss
for the year as a whole was HK$140.1 million (2007: loss of HK$7.9
million), in which, it includes the loss from the discontinued operation
of the natural gas pipeline network amounting to HK$91.4 million. In
order to turnaround the financial position, apart from cost control, the
Group has been actively seeking for additional stable source of
revenue. Our recent penetration into the waste-to-energy segment is
our medium to long term plan to achieve a stable cash flow but with

moderate risk in addition to our oil and gas operations.

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2008, the net assets of the Group were HK$132.4
million (31 December 2007: HK$260.8 million) while its total assets
were HK$150.0 million (31 December 2007: HK$307.9 million). As at
31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007, the Group’s gross
borrowings net of cash and bank balances was nil, therefore the
gearing ratio based on total assets was 0% accordingly. The current
ratio as at balance sheet date was 2.1 (31 December 2007: 2.4). In
terms of the gearing ratio and current ratio, the balance sheet of the
Group as at 31 December 2008 was sound and healthy; it will place
the Group in a strong financial position to take advantage of new
attractive investment opportunities that may arise, in particular those

relate to waste-to-energy and oil and gas operation.

B 75 B B8

KEFEES
HEBEFERBRARINMAL - B £20085F
12 4310 # 15 & 3 %835,800,000% 7T+ A F
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Foreign Exchange Fluctuation

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales and
purchases transactions and recognized assets and liabilities that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. At 31 December 2008, no related
hedges were made by the Group. In respect of trade and other
receivables and payables held in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to address

short-term imbalances.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES
As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed approximately 102

employees. The remuneration policies of the Group are based on the
prevailing remuneration level in the market and the performance of

respective companies and individual employees.

S BE 3% Eh

AEBAZ2ERRERIZRENBEBER
ZHEEBAINZERABZEER S RE
BREEZ R E-N2008F12A31H » N &
B EELAREE T MU BEER 26
BRI BB 2 BUGRIE R B FRIA -
REEEIEw B IZ A EIE X B 5 ME AR
REERT 1 - DAL RE AR B R SR 10 AT K o

& & 37 B B 3%

M2008F12A31H A E B /B 8 495102
Ao REBE 2 #H N ECR £ BI1RIR 1715 5 o
KEREEBAGLERNEE 2 RBET -

iz B PR 2 & ° 2008 F 3R

su
£

Bl % 2R ¥

A;
w



E —— paywi sbuipjoH ABiau3 sisausn e 8007 Hoday |enuuy
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Kong Siu Tim, aged 43, was appointed as Non-Executive
Director of the Company in August 2005 and redesignated as
Executive Director of the Company in November 2005. Mr. Kong has
been appointed as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the
Company in January 2008 and March 2009 respectively. Mr. Kong
holds a master degree of Economics at University of Warwick, UK. Mr.
Kong had been the general manager of the East Asia Futures Limited
and director of the private banking division of ABN AMRO BANK,
Hong Kong Branch. Mr. Kong has years of experience in banking and
securities industries and he is a member of the Hong Kong Securities

Institute.

Mr. Jiang Rizhong, aged 51, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in March 2009. Before joining the Group, Mr. Jiang had
been the Chief Engineer of Fujian Fengquan Environmental Protection
Company responsible for the development and advancement of new
products and related technology, the design and implementation of
automatic systems and the development of medical waste
incinerators. He was also in charge of the medical waste incineration
projects in Nangong, Beijing and the household refuse handling project
in Zhuiji, Zhejiang. Mr. Jiang holds a bachelor degree of mechanical
engineering and a master degree in fluid mechanics and machines
from Northeastern University, China and a doctoral degree in physical
oceanography and limnology from Swiss Federal Institute of
Technology in Lausanne, Switzerland. From 1984 to 1990, Mr. Jiang
conducted research on general fluid mechanics, two-phase flow
theory and its applications. He also carried out design and
development of fluid machinery such as ventilators and pumps at the
Department of Mechanical Engineering at Northeastern University.
From 1990 to 1997, Mr. Jiang had been a research engineer at Swiss
Federal Institute of Technology in Lausanne, Switzerland, conducting
systematic research on the issues regarding turbulence, mixing and
internal waves in stratified flows and energy dissipation with various
experiment methods and advanced instruments, and computed the
energy dissipation in a hydraulic distribution system for European
Nuclear Research Center. He conducted teaching and research work

at the Department of Mechanical Engineering, Ryerson Polytechnic

EEE

BITES

LRSS A - 4358 - P2005F8AEEZERA
RAEZIEMITESE - K2005F11A B AR A
FRITEFTEWRANTESE )T 5% 4712008
F1REZ L RAR R RITIRAEE I 200953
AHEEARBIZERE - ThEFBRBER
RELFEELEN MBEARTHELR
NAREEBERAHEBITAARITHES T
EERBITIREBFFTEESFLER WA

=

EHESEEERER -

EBRBEE 515 P2009F3AEEZERA
REIZHTEE -ZXRERMAREBEFE
HEREEERBRIZERER QAR 4E
E BERMEAFESAEESE 8L
R R AT B2 e J B By 4% B B U A B
T EEEE R REE BRNRREEE
M I#EEENRERIBER - ZXERE
FRERIEAEBTEEMSRAETENTIEE L
B -mEONZERTEEREXNTEEL
B RIn TR EHIBIET XSG L
BEEEMNIE BT BN o F %k £ R1984F
Z1990FERIL K EMM RN FHE LORE
REMBRERRXERMEHIE Rt
BUE B, A - KR E - PM990F &=
1007 F B ZEXR AT RIS ERAETIAXR
BHEXE HOEBERBONE RE - -FER-
ARG EBASRBET T ZRHEMNHE -
FRTZREERFRMEENERER Y
BEFHMEERRUARABBUMNER TREHEF
DHRHERETTHRTE 2R
1997 E1998F M MEXRZ M Z B ARIE L



Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EEREEEERASGNT

University, Toronto, Canada in 1997 and 1998. Mr. Jiang has years of
research and working experience in Europe, North America and China
and possesses solid knowledge and extensive experiences in resolving

technical issues, project management and science research as well.

Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence, aged 44, was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company in March 2009. Mr. Wan has been appointed
as financial controller and company secretary of the Company since
April 2001. Mr. Wan holds a bachelor degree of commerce and a
master degree of business administration. He has years of experience
in accounting and financial management and has worked for
international accounting firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. He
is a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants and a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia.

Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, aged 51, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in September 2005 and Chairman of the Company
since November 2005. Ms. Xing resigned as Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company in March 2009. Ms. Xing is also the director
of Hong Chang Group Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. Ms. Xing has extensive experience in consultancy business
of energy related projects and property investment in the northeastern
part of the PRC. She graduated at Jilin Industrial University, the PRC
with a bachelor degree in computer science and application in June
1982. Ms. Xing has been running her own consultant business with
offices both in Hong Kong and Shenzhen, the PRC since February
2001. Prior to starting her own business, she worked for the Computer
Laboratory of the Railway Bureau of Jilin, the PRC for more than two
years from January 1982 to September 1984, and the Economic
Commission of Jilin City, the PRC for more than fifteen years from
October 1984 to January 2001, where extensive connections and

relations were developed.

Mr. Ma Ji, aged 43, was appointed as Non-Executive Director of the
Company in November 2004 and redesignated as Executive Director
of the Company in August 2005. He was appointed as Deputy
Chairman of the Company since November 2005. Mr. Ma resigned as
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director of the Company in March

2009. Mr. Ma holds a Master of Architectural Engineering Management
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from Chong Qing University. He also worked as project manager or
director in charge of bidding, claim, construction and contract
management for highway, bridge and building construction projects in
United Arab Emirates, Pakistan, Cambodia, Russia and Sri Lanka,

etc..

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ni Zhenwei, aged 72, was appointed as Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in November 2005. Professor Ni
graduated at Tsinghua University in 1959, majoring in mechanical
engineering. Since then, he had been teaching and conducting
research activities at the Tsinghua University. In 1987, Professor Ni
obtained his qualification as an associate researcher in Tsinghua
University and retired in 1996. Professor Ni is an independent non-
executive director of Hong Kong listed VST Holdings Limited. He is
also a senior advisor to Korea’s POSCO Group, China Oceanwide
Group, STIG Limited, EC Guard Limited and a number of

conglomerates.

Mr. Yip Ching Shan, aged 46, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in July 2003. He graduated
from Jinan University, Guangzhou, PRC in 1988 with a bachelor
degree in Finance. He obtained his master degree in Economic from
Kobe University of Commerce, Japan in 1991. Mr. Yip also worked for
several multi-national banks and securities houses in Japan and Hong

Kong. He has over 10 years of experience in financial field.

Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen, Peter, aged 49, was appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in April 2006.
Mr. Wong is currently a practising barrister-at-law of the High Court of
the Hong Kong SAR. Mr. Wong holds a master degree of commerce
in marketing from University of Strathclyde, UK and a post-graduate
certificate in laws from University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong has more

than 15 years of extensive experience in legal practice.
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Technical Team

Mr. Li Guoyu, aged 78, has joined the Group as Chief Technical
Consultant since April 2007. He is a senior engineer at the professor
level. Mr. Li graduated from the Geological Department of Lanzhou
University. He was elected the academician of Russian Academy of
Natural Science in 1988. Mr. Li was also the Head of Crude Oil and
Gas Resource Bureau of China National Petroleum Corporation and
took part in the discovery of major oilfields in China including Karamay,
Daging, Shengli, North China and Dagang etc.. Mr. Li was awarded
the National Special Award for Scientific-technical Progress in Pohai
Qilfield. Mr. Li is the author of thirty-five petroleum geology books
including “China Atlas of Oil and Gas Basins” and “World Atlas of Oil
and Gas Basins” etc. and has published more than 84 research
papers and articles in famous professional journals in the United
States, Russia, Britain and France. Mr. Li has launched the new school
of geological theory called “Sedimentary Basin Theory” in 1978 which
was widely recognised by fellow geologists in the following 30th
International Geologist Meeting and generally applied by the worldwide
petroleum industry in production, scientific research and teaching. Mr.
Li was also a professor of China Petroleum University, Xian Petroleum
College, Texas University in the United States and Siberian University

in Russia.

Dr. Xie Da Jin, aged 51, has joined our Group as the deputy general
manager of Xian Hong Chang Petroleum Development and Service
Company Ltd. and the Group’s Chief Geologist since February 2008.
Dr. Xie graduated with a bachelor degree in petroleum exploration
from Chang Chun Geology Institute in 1982. He also holds a doctoral
degree in geophysics and information technology from Jilin University.
Dr. Xie has over 26 years of extensive experience in the oil and gas
industry and had been in charge of various petroleum exploration and
oilfield construction projects. He was the Deputy Division Chief of the
Exploration Technology Department of the Northeast Oil Bureau,
Sinopec (the “Oil Bureau”) from 1999 to 2002. Prior to this, he was the
head of the exploration/technical department of the Oil Bureau from
1982 to 1987 and then the project director at the Beijing office of the
Oil Bureau until 1994.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to
high standards of corporate governance for the purpose of providing a
framework and solid foundation for its business operation and
development. The Company considers that effective corporate
governance with probity, transparency and accountability makes an
important contribution to corporate success and to enhancement of
shareholders value.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year 2008 except for Code
Provisions A.2.1 and A.4.1. Code Provision A.4.1 requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing non-executive Directors
(including independent non-executive Directors) of the Company is
appointed for a specific term. However, as all of them are subject to
the retirement provisions of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Company considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those in the Code. The deviation from Code
Provision A.2.1 is detailed in the section headed “Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer” below.

THE BOARD

The Board is structured to ensure it is of a high calibre and has a
balance of key skills and knowledge. The Board comprises three
executive Directors, namely Mr. Kong Siu Tim (Chairman), Mr. Jiang
Rizhong and Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence and three independent non-
executive Directors (“INEDs”) required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing
Rules, namely Mr. Ni Zhenwei, Mr. Yip Ching Shan and Mr. Wong
Kwok Chuen Peter. Mr. Yip Ching Shan has appropriate qualifications
and accounting related financial expertise required under Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules. There is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship between the Directors. All the three
INEDs are independent under these independence criteria, and with
their wide range of skills and experience to the Group, they are
capable to effectively exercise independent judgment on issues of
strategy, performance, risk and people through their contribution at

Board and committee meetings.
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The Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as Directors in the best interests of the
Company and that the current board size is adequate for its present
operations. Each of the Directors keeps abreast of his/her
responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the conduct,

business activities and development of the Company.

The biographical details of the Directors are listed in the section of
“Directors and Senior Management Profiles” in this annual report and
that the INEDs are expressly identified in all of the Company’s
publication such as circular, announcement or relevant corporate
communications in which the names of Directors of the Company are

disclosed.

The Board conducts meeting on a regular basis and on ad hoc basis
to meet its business needs. The attendance of individual Directors at
board meetings and at two other board committees (the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee) during the year is set

out as below.

Meetings Attended/Held during term of office in 2008
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Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

EEE EZESE FMEEE

Number of meetings AEERBITEREAE 11 4 1

held during the year
Executive Directors HITEE

Xing Xiao Jing (Chairman) T RE & (£ ) 11/11 — 1/1

Kong Siu Tim ST /b 11/11 - B

Ma Ji =59 %4 5/11 — —
Independent Non-executive Directors BEaEBMITESE

Ni Zhenwel 12 iz 12 5/11 3/4 11

Yip Ching Shan Z51 5/11 4/4 1/1

Wong Kwok Chuen Peter S 5/11 4/4 _

Note:  Ms. Xing Xiao Jing and Mr. Ma Ji resigned as Directors of the Company on

3 March 2009.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be segregated and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company does not have separate
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Kong Siu Tim currently
holds both positions. In light of the current size and development of
the Company, the Board believes that vesting the roles of both
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person provides the
Company with consistent leadership. On the one hand, he can provide
leadership to the Board and ensure that the Board discharges its
responsibilities effectively, including formulating corporate strategies
and plans in conjunction with the Board and ensuring that Directors
receive complete, accurate and timely information and are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings. On the other hand, he is
responsible for the effective management and operation of the
Company, including monitoring and controlling the operational and
financial performance within the Group and implementing the

Company’s strategy and policies for achieving its objectives.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

The Company’s Bye-laws provide that each Director is required to
retire by rotation at least once every three years and that one-third (or
the number nearest to but not less than one-third) of the Directors
shall retire by rotation every year at the Company’s annual general
meeting. Retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the annual
general meeting of the Company. In considering the nomination of a
new director, the Board will take into account the qualification, in
particular any qualification as required in the Listing Rules, ability,
working experience, leadership and professional ethics of the
candidates that, in the opinion of the Directors, will enable them to
make a positive contribution to the performance of the Board. The
Board considers that the existing human resource policy in recruitment
of new senior staff is also applicable to nomination of a new director.
As the Board is responsible for selection and approval of candidates
for appointment as directors to the Board, the Company has not

established a nomination committee for the time being.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
Apart from the fiduciary duty and statutory responsibility towards the

Company and the Group, the Board is responsible for the
management of the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing the Company and shareholders’ value. Key
responsibilities include formulation of the Group’s overall strategies,
setting of corporate and management targets, monitoring of
operational and financial matters, approval of major capital
expenditures, material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate
or financial restructuring, material borrowings and any issuing, or
buying back, of equity securities. Responsibility for delivering
Company’s objectives and running the business on a day-to-day basis
is delegated to divisional management who have been given clear

guidelines and directions as to their authority.

The Company has adopted the Model Code (the “Model Code”) for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code of conduct
and rules governing dealing by all directors in the securities of the

company.

All the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard regarding directors’ securities dealings set out in the

Model Code during the year.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

The Company updates the Directors from time to time with
development in the laws and regulations relevant to their role as
director of the Company. Directors are also encouraged to update
their skills, knowledge and familiarity with the Group through initial

induction, ongoing participation at Board and committee meetings.

The Company’s senior management regularly supplies the Board and
its committees with adequate information in a timely manner to enable
them to make informed decisions. All Directors have access to Board
papers and related materials that will assist them for decision making.
Any Director, wishing to do so in the furtherance of his or her duties,
may take independent professional advice through the Company’s

expense.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is to maintain fair
and competitive packages based on business requirements and
industry practice. The Board has established a Remuneration
Committee which comprises three members with a majority of whom
are INEDs, namely Mr. Kong Siu Tim, Mr. Ni Zhenwei, Mr. Yip Ching
Shan. The committee is chaired by an INED, Mr. Yip Ching Shan. The
Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. With reference
to business needs and company development, individual performance
and contribution, changes in relevant markets and general economic
situation, the Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends to
the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for remuneration of
the Directors and senior management. During the review process, no
individual director is involved in decisions relating to his or her own
remuneration. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
is made available to the public on request and by including the
information on the Company’s website to ensure full compliance with

the code provision B.1.4 of the Code.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board is accountable for proper stewardship of the Company’s
affairs, and is responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps fair and
accurate accounting records which disclose its financial position. The
Directors also acknowledge their responsibility to prepare the financial
statements of the Group in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. This responsibility extends to

both interim and the annual reports.

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to establish, maintain and
review the effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls to
ensure that shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets are

safeguarded.
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In order to improve the level of corporate governance and safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets, under the guidance
of the Code, the Group has performed a comprehensive review for the
internal control system systematically annually with an aim to establish
an effective and comprehensive internal control system within the

Group.

The Group and its principal subsidiaries are trying to establish a variety
of more effective and stringent regulations and management system
for corporate internal controls. As such, subject to the requirements of
the Group, all principal subsidiaries of the Group will complete the
preparation of corporate internal control system in respect of control
environment and control procedure with reference to their respective

operational and managerial characteristics.

The internal control system of the Group covers all material control
requirements, including financial controls, operational controls,
compliance controls and risk management functions. The Board of the
Company has ongoing comprehensive review on the Group’s internal
control systems and risk management which with execution in good
condition and no significant control failures or weaknesses have been
noted. The board considered that these systems of internal controls
were effective and sufficient to guarantee the Group in achieving its

operation and governance objectives.

The Group will constantly improve and strengthen its corporate control
with reference to changes in the operating environment in order to
enhance its corporate governance and safeguard the interests of its
shareholders. The Board will continue to carry out regular review on
the internal control system. The assessment shall cover all material
controls and the management will regularly present particular report to
the Audit Committee and report to the Board in a timely manner. All
these aim at ensuring the efficient utilization of and adding value to the
Group’s assets, reducing corporate management risk and providing a

better protection to shareholders’ interests.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee assists the Board in discharging its
responsibilities for corporate governance, financial reporting and
corporate control. The Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr.
Ni Zhenwei, Mr. Yip Ching Shan and Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter,
and is chaired by Mr. Yip Ching Shan. None of the Audit Committee
members are members of the former or existing auditors of the
Company. The Committee meets at least twice a year. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review the completeness,
accuracy and fairness of the Company’s financial statements,
evaluating the Company’s auditing scope and procedures as well as
its internal control systems and to review the interim and final financial
statements before their submission to the Board and the annual
general meeting for approval. The Audit Committee is provided with
sufficient resources, including independent access to and advice from
external auditors. The terms of reference which describes the
authorities and duties of the Audit Committee has been adopted with
reference to “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and in accordance
with Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee is made available to the public on request and by
including the information on the Company’s website to ensure full

compliance with the code provision C.3.4 of the Code.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited were appointed as

auditors of the Company during the year to fill the casual vacancy

following the resignation of CCIF CPA Limited.

During the year, the fees paid or payable to the external auditors of the
Company, Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited were
approximately HK$600,000 for statutory audit services rendered

(excluding disbursement fees) to the Group.

The reporting responsibilities of Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong Kong
CPA Limited, the auditors, are stated in the Auditors’ Report on page
37 of the Annual Report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognizes the importance of good communication with
shareholders as well as investors. Information in relation to the Group
is disseminated to shareholders and investors in a timely manner
through a number of formal channels, include interim and annual
reports, announcements and circulars. Annual general meetings and
special general meetings also provide a useful forum for shareholders
to share views with the Board. Members of the Board (including
member(s) of the Audit and Remuneration Committees) attend
shareholders’ meetings and make themselves available to answer

shareholders’ questions.
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The directors submit their annual report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008, which are

set out on pages 40 to 152.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group during the year were oil and gas
exploitation and operations, refilling stations supplying natural gas and
liquefied petroleum gas for vehicle use, and also commencing other
renewable energy businesses. In December 2008, the Group ceased

its business of the operation of natural gas pipeline network.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 20 to the

financial statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of a dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group

during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during

the year are set out in note 32(a) to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 32(b) to the financial statements

and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity respectively.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on pages 4 and 5.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest customers were less
than 20% of the total sales for the year and the largest customer
accounted for approximately 8.45% of the Group’s total turnover for
the year. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for less than 95% and the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 86.76% of the Group’s total purchases

for the year.

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest

in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kong Siu Tim (Chairman)

Mr. Jiang Rizhong (appointed on 3 March 2009)

Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence (appointed on 3 March 2009)
Ms. Xing Xiao Jing (resigned on 3 March 2009)

Mr. Ma Ji (resigned on 3 March 2009)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ni Zhenwei

Mr. Yip Ching Shan

Mr. Wong Kwok Chuen Peter

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law 87(1), Mr. Kong Siu Tim and Mr.
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election. Pursuant to the Company’s bye-law
86(2), Mr. Jiang Rizhong and Mr. Wan Tze Fan Terence will hold office
until the forthcoming annual general meeting and will retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. All other remaining

directors continue in office.
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The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all

of the independent non-executive directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment other

than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short positions of the
directors (the “Directors”) and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies (the “Model Code”) were as follow:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Interests in shares/

EERKROGRAMIRG P ZER

F2008F12A31H AR AEE([EF]) K
THRERAARISEEMBHEZE (AH
BHREEEN ([FHRBE KD ) EXVEH
T 2BRE) 2R ARG REHF
MABEBMARRBEES KB E KRG $352
GEE2ERMAEXRBRE LT RARESE
TRAFR S 2B (TFAESFR ) 28 &0
EARNFRESBERGMARAR ([HX
i)z RARIT :

REAT KRG RERAKRBPHEBTZETE

Capacity/Nature Number of shares/underlying

Name of Director underlying shares of interest shares held
EEMa R REFER G PR S ESHE Fifsh 4 HEAR G EE
Xing Xiao Jing Shares Corporate 1,723,830,650
i B A
Share Options Personal 61,000,000
i A 1 PN
Kong Siu Tim Shares Personal 11,500,000
L i 47 & A
Share Options Personal 61,000,000
fE IR & A
Ma Ji Share Options Personal 40,000,000
S i A 1 PN
Ni Zhenwei Share Options Personal 8,000,000
R 4R 12 BB & A
Yip Ching Shan Share Options Personal 8,000,000
S5 v & A
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter Share Options Personal 8,000,000
=mE AR fE IR v & A

Notes: (1) Ms. Xing Xiao Jing and Mr. Ma Ji resigned as Directors of the Company

on 3 March 2009.
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(2) 1,662,795,650 shares were owned by Hong Chang China Limited, a
company wholly owned by Hong Chang Group Limited which in turn is
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing. In addition, Hong
Chang Group Limited directly and beneficially owned 61,035,000 shares

in the Company.

(8) Particulars of directors’ interests in the share options of the Company

are set out in the section “Share Option Scheme”.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2008, none of the
Directors nor any of their associates had any interests in the securities
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 6 March 2002. The Scheme is in full compliance with the
relevant requirements of Chapter 17 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rule”). The purpose
of the Scheme is to enable the Company to grant options to the
eligible participants of the Group in recognition of their contribution to
the Group. Eligible participants of the Scheme include any full-time
employees and executive and non-executive directors of the Company
or its subsidiaries and any suppliers, consultants, agents and advisers.
The Scheme became effective on 6 March 2002 and, unless otherwise

cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of the limit
and such limit may be refreshed by shareholders in general meeting.
However, the total maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme and any other share option schemes

must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.
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The maximum entitlement for any eligible person (other than a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or any of their respective associates) is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
granted and to be granted in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of the latest grant does not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at the relevant time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting. The period within which an option may be exercised
will be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, save that no

option may be exercised later than 10 years from 6 March 2002.

The exercise price in relation to each option shall be determined by the
Board in its absolute discretion, but in any event shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of such option;
(i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of such option; and (jii) the

nominal value of a share on the date of grant of such option.

Some further disclosures relating to the Scheme are set out in note 31

to the financial statements.
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As at 31 December 2008, the directors and employees of the Group

had the following personal interests in options to subscribe for shares

of the Company granted at nominal consideration under the Scheme.

Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share.

Details of share options held by the Directors and employees of the

R2008F12A31H - A& B EE KEERXIR
BetglA2E FORERZETREARR AR
MZBEREFEAUATZEAERS - SHE
RIER THAEARBIRKRND 2R - NEH
EENEBRE E2008F 128311 FE AT#F

Group and movements in such holdings during the year ended 31 BRERZEEREZEFHFERAN TR :
December 2008 are as follows:
Number of options
ERENE
Outstanding at Granted  Exercised Outstanding at Exercise
1 January during during 31 December price
2008 the year the year 2008 Date of grant Exercise period per share
1420084 122008
1A18 RER RER 123318 BREHZ
8 K 17 1 i ki HARTHE HHAH TEER TEE
D.MY) D.M.Y) HK$
(B.R.5F) (B.R.5) B
Directors:
EE:
Xing Xiao Jing 3,000,000 — — 3,000,000  02.11.2005 03.11.2005-02.11.2010 0.035
=1 30,000,000 — - 30,000,000  02.11.2006 02.11.2006-01.11.2011 0.053
9,000,000 - - 9,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
— 9,000,000 — 9,000,000  21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
— 10,000,000 - 10,000,000  07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Kong Siu Tim 5,000,000 — - 5,000,000  02.11.2005 03.11.2005-02.11.2010 0.035
LA 25,000,000 — - 25,000,000  02.11.2006 02.11.2006-01.11.2011 0.053
17,000,000 — — 17,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
- 9,000,000 - 9,000,000  21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
— 5,000,000 — 5,000,000  07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Ma Ji 15,000,000 — - 15,000,000  02.11.2005 03.11.2005-02.11.2010 0.035
5 25,000,000 — - 25,000,000  02.11.2006 02.11.2006-01.11.2011 0.053
Ni Zhenwei 4,000,000 — — 4,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
RIRE — 2,000,000 — 2,000,000  21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
- 2,000,000 — 2,000,000  07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Yip Ching Shan 4,000,000 — — 4,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
#EE — 2,000,000 - 2,000,000  21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
- 2,000,000 - 2,000,000  07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Wong Kwok Chuen Peter 4,000,000 — — 4,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
kS — 2,000,000 — 2,000,000  21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
- 2,000,000 - 2,000,000  07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
Employees 7,000,000 — — 7,000,000  02.11.20056 03.11.2005-02.11.2010 0.035
(=] 50,000,000 - - 50,000,000  02.11.2006 02.11.2006-01.11.2011 0.053
297,250,000 — 2,000,000 295,250,000  26.01.2007 26.02.2007-25.02.2012 0.189
362,000,000 — - 362,000,000  22.08.2007 22.08.2007-05.03.2012 0.375
— 36,000,000 — 36,000,000  21.08.2008 21.08.2008-05.03.2012 0.180
— 119,000,000 — 119,000,000  07.11.2008 07.11.2008-05.03.2012 0.060
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Notes:

Ms. Xing Xiao Jing and Mr. Ma Ji resigned as Directors of the Company on

3 March 2009.

On 21 August 2008, 60,000,000 options were granted. The closing price of
the Company’s shares immediately before that date was HK$0.179 per

share.

On 7 November 2008, 140,000,000 options were granted. The closing price
of the Company’s shares immediately before that date was HK$0.062 per

share.

During the year, the weighted average closing price of the Company’s shares
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised was

HK$0.295 per share.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections “Directors’ Interests in

Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share Option Scheme”, at no

time during the year was the Company or any of its associated

corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the

Company or any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of

age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors
EEERESE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS ' INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2008, the following persons, not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

FEREZHERS
R2008F12A31H * LN AL (WIEARABE

FRITHAR ) PRI 5 1] 5336
TR 2 B AT BN A D 2 B 1 AR B
Bl R e M T

Long position in shares of the Company REATIBRBPHEREZFE

Capacity/ Number of
Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held
R & E B HEEE Fits izt 88
Hong Chang China Limited Beneficial 1,662,795,650
HEFRBARAA EnkEl
Hong Chang Group Limited Corporate 1,662,795,650
BEEBERAF NS

Beneficial 61,035,000

EnkEl

Note: 1,662,795,650 shares were owned by Hong Chang China Limited, a
company wholly owned by Hong Chang Group Limited which in turn is
wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing. In addition, Hong
Chang Group Limited directly and beneficially owned 61,035,000 shares.

Saved as disclosed above in this section, as at 31 December 2008,
the Company has not been notified of any other persons (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest
or short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of
the SFO.

BFE © 1,662,795,6500 M) iRk EFEBRAFHEE °
BEFBREBERAFBBESEERARNEZERE
MEENEMERLT2ERERES 1IN 1B
ESEARAAEE RE = % H61,0350000% ik

e

Br £ P # BE & S R2008512A31H @ &K
A EERETANEMAL (TREARALQF
ZEFHTHRAF)EARREZSLHE
GBI £330 TFE 2 B MR ER A QA
B kAR EEREIARE



Report of the Directors
EEERESE

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
retirement schemes operated by local authorities in the PRC. The
Group also operates a defined contribution scheme covering full time
employees in Hong Kong. Details of employee retirement benefits are

set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS ' REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS ' EMOLUMENTS

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration and highest paid individuals’
emoluments are set out in note 9 and note 10 to the financial

statements respectively.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, no contracts
of significance subsisted at any time during the year to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director

of the Company had material interest, whether directly or indirectly.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its directors, as of the date of this report, there
is sufficient public float of the shares with not less than 25% of the
total issued shares of the Company as required under the Listing

Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-
laws or the laws in Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

BRETE

7K 5k B R o B2 B 2 7 0B BT B 4 0 i
BEM 2 RINHEZME - AEETEH —
BEFGRAD RECEEEZ2MES -
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Report of the Directors
EEEHREE

AUDITORS
Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited were appointed as

auditors of the Company during the year upon the resignation of CCIF
CPA Limited. The financial statements have been audited by Shu Lun
Pan Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited. The Company’s auditors will
change their name from Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong Kong CPA
Limited to Shu Lun Pan Hong Kong CPA Limited and will merge their
business with BDO McCabe Lo Limited on 1 May 2009. On the same
date, BDO McCabe Lo Limited will change their name to BDO Limited.
As a result of these changes, a resolution will be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company to appoint BDO
McCabe Lo Limited (to be renamed as BDO Limited on 1 May 2009)

as the Company’s auditors.

By order of the Board
Kong Siu Tim

Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2009
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIABHMEHRES

A\ Horwath

Independent Auditors’ Report to the shareholders of
Genesis Energy Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Genesis Energy Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as to
the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 152, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2008,
the consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong Kong CPA Limited
BBV EEESTMEKMARAR

20th Floor Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone 1 (852) 2526 2191

Facsimile 1 (852) 2810 0502

horwath@horwath.com.hk

www.horwath.com.hk
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Independent Auditors’ Report
BIABHMEHRES

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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BIABHMEHRES

OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2008 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHU LUN PAN HORWATH HONG KONG CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants
17 April 2009

Shiu Hong NG
Practising Certificate number PO3752

20th Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Consolidated Income Statement

HEEMR

For the Year ended 31 December 2008 #, 220084 12 A31H It F &
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( JA # 7T & & )

2008 2007
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 5E FHET FA& T
(restated)
(F&=51)
Continuing operations BFEEEERE
Turnover SR 4 815 40,064 30,314
Direct costs HEKAR (28,193) (22,405)
Gross profit EF 11,871 7,909
Other income RPN 1,210 4,653
Other gains and (losses), net HfhWas & (B 48 ) F48 (12,299) (3,300)
Distribution costs paiE=0:: (5,751) (4,569)
Administrative expenses THE A (36,548) (39,537)
Loss from operations EE e (41,517) (34,844)
Finance costs A& B AN 7(a) = (171)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled & {& £t [7] 22 4
entity AERAEE 19 (4,372) —
Loss before taxation 8=l ] (45,889) (35,015)
Income tax st 8(a) (2,830) (959)
Loss for the year from BEEEEBZ
continuing operations AEEEIE (48,719) (35,974)
Discontinued operations CRILEEER
(Loss)/profit for the year from ERIERERER 2
discontinued operations REE (BE) WE 11 (91,429) 28,038
Loss for the year XEERE 7 (140,148) (7,936)
Attributable to: {0 O N o3
Equity holders of the Company KRAFIRERE A (140,148) (7,936)
Minority interests D BT R - =
(140,148) (7,936)
Dividends fz 8 13 = =




Consolidated Income Statement

HEEMR

For the Year ended 31 December 2008 #, 220084 12 A31H It F &
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( JA # 7T & & )

2008 2007

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FERX FET
(restated)

(&)

(Loss)/earnings per share — Basic &% (518) & F — B4

— From continuing and — REFELER
discontinued operations BRI RE T

— From continuing operations — RERFEBELEED

— From discontinued operations — REERIEREER

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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(3.31) HK cents (0.19) HK cents
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Al
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEHAERBER

At 31 December 2008 W 20084 12 A31H
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( JA # 7T & & )

2008 2007
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
B E F#EX TFTERX THET THER
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERER
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment LEN N 16 42,300 144,275
Prepaid lease payments MEFEMRE 17 1,233 3,612
Intangible assets mEE 18 48,673 43,362
Investment in a jointly controlled R—EREZEEE
entity N A Z 19 15,128 —
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 21 1,431 —
Pledged deposits RPN 22 2,316 1,053
Deposits paid BEffiE® 2,084 2,084
113,165 194,386
Current assets REEE
Inventories TE 23 51 125
Other receivables, deposits and EfERE e
prepayments SERNE O 24 3,703 2,177
Note receivable fE U =% 25 13,500 —
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBREEEY 26 19,622 111,224
36,3876 113,526
Current liabilities mBEE
Other payables and Bt jE - B K
accruals EREHR 27 (16,532) (46,559)
Provision P 28 (338) —
Taxation fR1A 29(a) (742) (504)
(17,612) (47,063)
Net current assets RENEEFE 19,264 66,463
NET ASSETS EEFE 132,429 260,849



Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEHAERBER

At 31 December 2008 K 2008412 A31H
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( JA # 7T & & )

2008 2007
Notes HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
M 2 FERX TFERX THET TAET
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERGHE
Share capital A% 2 32(a) 42,269 42,249
Reserves H & 90,038 218,600
Total equity attributable to equity RARIRERZRE A
holders of the Company FEfL B R = 132,307 260,849
Minority interests DEIRRERESS 122 —
TOTAL EQUITY MHELS 132,429 260,849

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
17 April 2009.

Kong Siu Tim
T
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

FESN2009F4 17X AL FFA] B -

Wan Tze Fan Terence
mYE
Director

EF
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Balance Sheet

EERER

At 31 December 2008 W 20084 12 A31H
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( JA # 7T & & )

2008
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
B aE F#x THERXT &I
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERERE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Investments in subsidiaries R E AR ZIEE 20 4 28,340
Current assets HRENEE
Other receivables, deposits HM gl sia - e Kk
and prepayments TEfF 3B 24 125,531
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEEEY 26 1,536
127,067
Current liabilities REN&E
Other payables and H b FE S RUE R
accruals TEIRE A 27 (1,778)
Net current assets REBEEFHE 125,289 226,093
NET ASSETS BEFE 125,293 254,433
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEAXR#EE
Share capital R& A 32(a) 42,269 42,249
Reserves ] 32(b) 83,024 212,184
TOTAL EQUITY (B REZS 125,293 254,433

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

17 April 2009.

Kong Siu Tim
T
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

% F 2 R2009F4 A17H 2 &I

Wan Tze Fan Terence
mYE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEEmBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 20084 12 A31H Ikt F &

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( JA # 7T & & )

Attributable to equity holders of the Company (note 32(c))
AATRERT AR (HEE32())

Share
Share Share Contributed option Exchange Accumulated Minority Total
capital premium surplus  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity
LH
) 560 R i3 S (&S
A iy by f# f# E# it 358 s
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THEL TAx T T THT T TEL TAR FTHT
At 1 January 2007 R2007E1A18 35,851 227,057 81,043 4,461 11,651 (265,951) 104,112 — 104,112
Net income recognised directly in equity — E#ERERRED 2K FE
Exchange differences on translation of financial ~ #: & & 5N B 2 &)

statements of overseas subsidiaries BRERIELEZR - - - - 9,498 - 9,498 - 9,498
Transfer from equity EERER
Release upon disposal of subsidiaries & Bt B AN ) B ]

(note 33(0)) (F#E33(0)) = = = = (2,683) - (2,683) — (2,683)
Loss for the year FEERE - - - - - (7,936) (7,936) - (7,936)
Total recognised income and FEEERIRAR

expenses for the year BXaE - - - - 6,815 (7,936) (1,121) - (1,121)
Shares issued under the placing REEETRG

(note 32(0) (Hiz¥32(0)) 3,740 114,774 = = = — 118514 — 118514
Shares issued under share option scheme RERE BT 2R D

(note 32(0)) (Fi#E32(0)) 2658 22,558 - (3,499) - - 21,717 - 21,717
Equity-settled share-based transactions BRALEURNIR 2R S

(note 31) (Fit5E31) - = = 17,627 = = 17,627 — 17627

6,398 137,332 - 14,128 - — 157,858 — 157,858
At 31 December 2007 20074 12A31H 42,249 364,389 81,043 18,589 18,466 (263,887) 260,849 — 260,849

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEEmBHR

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 20084 12 A31H Ikt F &

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( JA # 7T & & )

Attributable to equity holders of the Company (note 32(c))
FATRERF B (HE32(0c))

Share
Share Share Contributed option Exchange Accumulated Minority Total
capital  premium surplus  reserve  reserve losses Total interests equity
DY
i 3 fm Bk ER Rit BE
L3 {8 e k& 1] 53] it B BER
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T#ER  TERL TET TERT TERD TET TET TER TERL
At 1 January 2008 1200851 A1H 42,249 364,389 81,043 18,589 18,466 (263,887) 260,849 - 260,849
Net income recognised directly in equity —~ E#ERERED 2K FHE
Exchange differences on translation of financial & 84N B A T8 B R %
statements of overseas subsidiaries JEHEE - - - - 7,351 - 7,351 - 7,351
Loss for the year FEERKE - - - - - (140,148)  (140,148) - (140,148)
Total recognised income and FEEERRAR
expenses for the year X dEE - - - - 7,351 (140,148)  (132,797) - (132,797)
Capital contribution by a minority equity holder  H B2 & 2 D &R iERH A
of a subsidiary ZRAEEE - - - - - - - 122 122
Shares issued under share option scheme RERESERTZ2RG
(note 32(0) (B 3£32(0)) 20 391 = (33) = = 378 = 318
Equity settled share-based transactions BAREEURH A 2R 5
(note 31) (Kiz£31) - - - 3,877 - - 3,877 - 3,877
20 391 = 3,844 = = 4,255 122 4,377
At 31 December 2008 120085128316 42,269 364,780 81,043 22,433 25,817 (404,035 132,307 122 132,429

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

BEM B AT BRERZ — 8 -



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 20084 12 A31H Ikt F &
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( JA # 7T & & )

2008 2007
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FAET
(restated)
(5e&=7)
Operating activities WEER
(Loss)/profit before taxation BRELAT (BB ) & T
From continuing operations REFELEER (45,889) (35,015)
From discontinued operations REBRIELCEETR (91,429) 28,038
(137,318) (6,977)
Adjustments for: FEIRE ¢
Depreciation of property, plant e U=
and equipment RE2TE 16,126 46,678
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T E TR RIE# 306 306
Amortisation of intangible assets A 218 20
Finance costs A& AN - 28,006
Interest income FE WA (743) (4,660)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of 5] = Bﬁ BAREE
subsidiaries (Yrzs) 87,531 (66,909)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEME - l'r‘?i B &
plant and equipment =) EBE (1,902) 71
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEERE
investments BEEE 914 =
Impairment loss on prepaid lease HEEKIE
payment VERIEN R 2,417 =
Impairment loss on property, M- WE R
plant and equipment FEREBE 8,337 =
Equity-settled share-based payment & 7 45 & DARR
expenses SR sy 3,877 17,627
Share of loss of a jointly controlled EEERIE#EEE
entity NAlEE 4,372 =
Operating (loss)/profit before changes in ZESSEBTHNESE
working capital (E548) B F (15,865) 14,162
Decrease in inventories FER D 74 541
Decrease/(increase) in other receivables, Hglsis - ke hiE
deposits and prepayments NEIER AL, (B M) 59 (22,965)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HEMEMFIBERIERE B
and accruals i“ m/ Cd) 4,408 (4,922)
Effect of foreign exchange rate difference E R S (424) 6,370
Cash used in operations BEERFRAZES (11,748) (6,814)
Tax paid B @A IE
PRC tax paid B4 B F 1E (2,479) (958)
Net cash used in operating activities LEERFAZ
R&F8E (14,227) (7,772)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2008 # 20084 12 A31H Ikt F &
(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( JA # 7T & & )

2008 2007
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FET FATT
(restated)
(F&E=75)
Investing activities BEEE
Payment for purchase of property, BAME -  BE
plant and equipment MEENR (21,046) (25,194)
Proceeds from sale of property, LEME  BE
plant and equipment KBS RIE 3,471 407
Payment for purchase of intangible assets BABEFREEMNK (5,838) (38,234)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits BHEMRERGLM) RS (1,263) 219
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from disposal HEMRBRARIZESTEA
of subsidiaries /G ) F5a 33 1,500 (2,223)
Interest received B F B 743 4,520
Payment for purchase of available-for-sale BARHEEREMNK
investments (2,346) —
Investment in a jointly controlled RERIZERESE QA
entity 2B (19,500) =
Net cash used in investing activities BRETEFAZ
R&FH (44,279) (60,505)
Financing activities R & EE)
Proceeds from shares issued & BTG
under the placing Ffr 13 5K 18 = 121,550
Share issuing expenses ZEITRMD E A = (3,036)
Proceeds from shares issued under share LR B TR MFT
option scheme B 3IE 378 21,717
Capital contribution from minority interest RKELHEBRRZEE 122 =
Repayment of bank loans BERITER = (8,247)
Repayment of other loans BEEEMER = (5,345)
(Repayment)/advance from a controlling A BIERAR R 2
shareholder GER) /B% (33,114) 1,236
(Repayment)/advance from a minority equity MEARDHERERE A
holder of a subsidiary 2 GER) /8% (797) 3,018
Interest paid BAF A = (2,595)
Net cash (used in)/generated AL EE (FTA)  EEZ
from financing activities IR&FE (33,411) 128,298
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HEeERBELZEEY
and cash equivalents (RL), tEiniEsE (91,917) 60,021
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MW1A1BZERE
RIESZEY 111,224 51,050
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ExggHzue 315 153
Cash and cash equivalents at 12A31H ' HIIRE X
31 December, representing cash and PRITERZIRER
bank balances RE%EY 19,622 111,224
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. PEMff 2 M sE B A ERK 2 — 5 °



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

GENERAL INFORMATION

Genesis Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda on 2 November 1999 under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended) and its shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on
9 February 2000. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and Suite
3707-3708, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught
Road Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries and the jointly controlled

entity are set out in note 20 and note 19 respectively.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that
are relevant to its operations and effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in substantial

changes to the Group’s accounting policies.

—BEs

Bl RERER AR (AQF DR
BEEE-NN\—F28E (BFTAX)
F1999F 11 H2R IE B R EF MK &
X#MeBERDA - HR P H20004F2H9
HREBBMERGMAER QA ER &
MeARBIZAMPEERETE L E M
2h 5 Bl iz 7 Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda X & 7
& 18 7 168-2005% {5 12 - /0 78 BE3707-
3708 o

AR E—REEZBRAT - KB
AR EREEAERRZ EEEK
2 Bl Ek 7 B 75 3R 3R B 5E20 %19 ©

AN E] REEGTEA

RAREE AEBECRMEARSEER
BMZAEFI RRETBRY B RS
ZR ([FEMBHRELEL ] ZAHEE
EhERGHMAR (FESFMA
DRMZMABAERZ @R EE MG

EEA - FRGHEN((BESE
Al ke 2FFRMBHREENR
AEBEARAR z NG HRER - &K
MZENATRRETTEMHREE
A BMEFAEE 2 @ RRELEMT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

STANDARDS (Continued)

The adoption of HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 “HKFRS 2 — Group and
treasury share transactions”, HK(IFRIC) —
concession arrangements”, HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 “HKAS 19 —
The limit on a defined benefit asset, minimum funding
requirements and their interaction” and HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7

Amendments “Reclassification of financial assets” has no impact

on these financial statements.

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements, the

following HKFRSs were in issue but not yet effective:

HKAS 1 (Revised)
EREGTEAFE1 (KEFT)
HKAS 23 (Revised)

BB g R E235 (KEET)
HKAS 32 & HKAS 1 (Amendments)

BRI EAFERR REBZETEEL
F15% (BFIAR)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments)

EREMBHRELUFEIRRERE G
R F275% (BRI A)

HKFRS 8

&8I K E R FE85R

HK(FRIC) — Int 15

TR (BERVBHRERESR
— BEE155%

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

RN HREER F25% (BRI A)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)

EREMBHRELERETHR (BFTX)

]

g)

\

Int 12 “Service

RENHET R AEIEETER (2)

RnEE (BRMBERERBEEZES

— REFIR[FAM KRS LA E2
- KEREFROXS]FE (H
BRUMBEHEREBEZES) - 2EBF125
(RGEERTE] T (BRM %R
TREZEE) - 2BF4RIEES

AHERIE19%E — AEMNmEERS
RRESREREBEERIRETES
st 2RI SE30%% K & B M I M & R FH7
BB EHD BRI EE | LA

BHRERLEBEZE -

Presentation of financial statements

MBEBRZER

Borrowing costs

fEERA

Puttable financial instruments and obligations arising

on liquidation
hAEeRMTAERBRELACZAEE

Cost of an investment in a subsidiary,
jointly controlled entity or associate

MEBAR HRZEESEQRKBERRZ
REKA

Operating segments

KEDR

Agreements for the construction of real estates

P b E 722 55 W o

Vesting conditions and cancellations
5 B R 1T KRt 8
Improving disclosures about financial instruments

XEREHEERITAZKE

REETIEMBHRER 2B EEMER
RER2BAMBGHRELAWAT ¢

Effective date
A H H
(i)

U



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised)
BB ERF275 (KAEET)
HKAS 39 (Amendment)
EFRE G ERIE395E (BRI A)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)
BRI BHREERFE15 (KEET)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
BB HRE LR EIR (KEET)
HK(FRIC) — Int 17
T8 (BRI BRERELZESY)
— BREFITR
HK(FRIC) — Int 13
T (BRVBREREEZES)
— REEI13H
HK(FRIC) — Int 16
T8 (BRI BRERELZESY)
— BEF165%
HK (IFRIC) — Int 9 & HKAS 39 (Amendments)
T (BRVBREREEZES)
— REFER RE B G5 LR FEI95K
(BT A)
HK(FRIC) — Int 18
TR (BRVBREREEZESY)
— REE185%
2008 Improvements to HKFRSs that may
result in accounting changes for

presentation, recognition or measurement

2008 BB B MELA 2B HEE
HEH BRAAEZSHANED

Consolidated and separate financial statements
fre KRBk

Eligible hedged items

BEBREHIAR

First-time adoption of HKFRSs
BRERANE BB RS %A

Business combinations

E%E 0t

Distributions of non-cash assets to owners

MEBADKIREEE

Customer loyalty programmes
=P RGBT E

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation
HHMBEIMEREFHE

Embedded derivatives
BMARITET R

Transfers of assets from customers

BREEFPZEE

— HKAS 1, HKAS 16, HKAS 19, HKAS 20,
HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28, HKAS 29,
HKAS 31, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS 39,
HKAS 40 & HKAS 41

— B G ERNER BA ST EREI65
& B g5 £ R F205%
ERE G EAF275
B g E R F295%
BB gt ERIE365%
& B g 5T % A 395

ERE G ERF199 -
&g 5T % A 235
BB g A F285 -
ER G ERE315%
&g s % A 385
BB G ERAFE0% REAS G ERFEHR

— HKFRS 5

— BB RS LR ESR

RENHET R AEIEETER (2)

Effective date
A4 3 B R

(ii

(ii

(ii

(i)

(i)

(vi)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )
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i) Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
ii) Annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
iii) Annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

(
(
(
(iv) Annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
(
(

V) Annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009
Vi) Transfers of assets from customers received on or after 1 July 2009

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these new or revised Standards or Interpretations

is expected to be in the period of their initial application.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention as modified by certain financial instruments

which are carried at fair value.

(c) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31

December each year.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective dates of acquisition or to the effective dates of

disposal, as appropriate.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. BT REETER 2)
STANDARDS (continued)
Effective date H %8 E

i) M2009F1 A1B 3 2 1% F 16 2 & Z HAfE
(ii) 200957 A1A sk 2 & F 1A 2 FZ HIf
(ii) 20087 A1 3k 2 1% M a8 2 & E B
(iv) 7R2008F10A1A sk 2 & 1A 2 F £ Hi
( M2009F6 430 sk 2 & AR 2 F E HAfH
(vi) 20097 A1 R EEEFEEEER

&

AEEEETHEREFTREBETE
RISk 32 IR S 9 4R SR A HIR 2 A

FEEFBOR

(@ &HEH

AP BHREDRBABERB 2B B
BmEER - BALCRSTRAURES
NGOl 2 BB RERE - NP B HRE
NHEBAHERIMEBERRAES
EMRAZERIFEESRTE -

(b) MBHRZEREE
AFBHRRTDRALE TRAFED
ReeRMTAFABRZESLKAED

GER

(c) ZEEE
RENBREBEARAARENEA
AHESFI2AB I 2 HB®RE -

REAKBRLEZHBLR XS
THKRELEREHEREELELENR
BHILE EE)IIAGZREBER -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All significant inter company transactions and balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group enterprises are
eliminated on consolidation. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an

impairment on the asset transferred.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into

line with those used by other members of the Group.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries
are identified separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority
interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share of
changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s interest in
the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover

the losses.

(d) Business combinations

Acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase
method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition
date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in accordance with

the accounting policy set out in note 3(g) below.

3.

FESZFTHEE#)

(c) &ZE&EEE W)

Pﬁﬁiﬁ"ﬁjﬁﬁi%‘ﬁmﬂﬁﬁﬁi
EHREARERRECREARA R

ﬂfﬁ ﬂi ‘‘‘‘‘‘ fﬁ)’éﬁ@ﬂ’%%;ﬁ% B IER

MEFE AHWBRAR M BmKRIE
B H& 5t BURE AR & B H b

LBERERAIERANBARZE
EFERREANEREEZEE DM
R LDBRRAERBENRELA M
RHizARRESEE URLHERER
EHEMERA ERES LEERR
BEEBRBH D BRREMSMNE QR
REZSENAEERRYH  HEHD
ERRABHORUEEERBRENIED
BN E AR ZFERERIN

(d) EFEEH

U B Bt /B8 2 B ER AR B R B o BB X
TRIXMEBMGTZEE  FfTEEXK
EEZEBERAEE BB WER
THEMBTZRATAZBEATFE
MEEBEHEEEG 2 EMKAT
B WKER A HNEE  BERSK
EEBEDNREBASERKERBR A
TEER -

R U B 1 22 AR 2 P B R AR T XXM RES(g)
FrEl st R R -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Business combinations (Continued)

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially
measured at the minority’s proportion of the net fair value of the

assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

(e) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of the subsidiary so
as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken

into account.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
balance sheet at cost less any impairment loss. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividends received and receivable.

(f) Jointly controlled entity
A jointly-controlled entity is an entity which operates under a

contractual arrangement between the Group or Company and

3.

FESZFTHEE#)

(d) ZEHEH (&)

B R (8 2 M B O 3 )
FisERRAE BERNEEEAT
FEZ Y

(e) MIBAT
MEARNDEASE FRETEEGB
RS SR - 0 #E UE 1 BB B BUIS T
B AT IEGI R EEEE
FATTRE 2 BERERE -

4H Bk
)

NG NI 8- 9 N = CI D =1
EERARREERERAKR HWELQ
AZEERD R RERREBHAR A
N

() HEEEEEAT
/\l_J% Egéé(’\jXE?EIKE.jZK/\
FEEMEBAIABBESNLTHEE 2

other parties, where the contractual arrangement establishes ER G MABASYTHEN EAEES
that the Group or Company and one or more of the other parties AARBE—EskA Lz EMBERTD
share joint control over the economic activity of the entity. (2B 82 Z &R E) 2 R A o



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f) Jointly control entity (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly-controlled entity is
incorporated in the financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held
for sale or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale. Under the equity method, investments in a jointly-
controlled entity is carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s
share of the net assets of the jointly-controlled entity, less
impairment in the value of individual investments. Losses of a
jointly-controlled entity in excess of the Group’s interest in that a
jointly-controlled entity which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly-controlled entity are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the jointly-controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the jointly-controlled entity recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill. The goodwill is
included within the carrying amount of the investment and is

assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any excess

3.

FESZFTHEE#)

(H HEEESEAT (&)
AH¢% BRAIZEBREESR
BIRGH RS RIAMBERE -
DEARBEHEXMADE AR
ECHEBRAZRERI - RiBRES
EORERBESERRIZREEH
BAEEDELRAEEAERARAEE
FEZWEEEEEE R ERNR
BEEREIAGEEERBER  HA
EEELLRRETERTIIRRLA
TRABEARINRIER - FERRAL
RAZEELEATBEBLEANEERZ
HAZEAB AR ZERS 2B  %E
BEREEREMRASER L REE
éﬁﬁﬁZ&é%@z%%%éo

fisl Y BB PR AR B HE AR R B 0 (5 HL A S 4R
EERANKERABRER AT H#AE
E RERHIFAEBE BLAS SR
BRAEE BEMAREREME I
ERRE WMo ETRENE REM
‘B HAKEDEAHRNEE  AER

of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable KB BEZ AT FEBHKERA - 8
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of TR H 2B 90 BN B A 18 23 FE 2R

acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

Where a Group entity transacts with a jointly-controlled entity of AEEzEREASEE 2 ARZEES
the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the BRAEIRSE BaBEAEBER
Group’s interest in the relevant jointly-controlled entity, except BRELREES éf Gl Fﬁ 12 B

where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of
the assets transferred, in which case they are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

g —— paywiq sbuipjoH ABiau3 sisausDn e 8007 Hoday |enuuy

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FETHHEE &)
(Continued)
(g9) Goodwill (9 W8

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly
controlled entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or
jointly controlled entity recognised at the date of acquisition.
Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated

impairment losses.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other asset
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is

not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of
the business combination, the excess is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.

On the disposal of a subsidiary or jointly controlled entity, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination

of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an

associate or a jointly controlled entity is described in note 3(f).

WEMB AR IR ZERAE QAN
EEZHE RERBRABLHASE
AU RE B HIR % MY B A R S A A
BERBIZCHERAISKHEE BER
FBERBEZAFEFETMAERERZ
B R ERNBRAERSEE - H
féhzﬁk$%ﬂ MEM RFHRERSREE -

RREANANE  BEOEEAKERE
HXERAHMTRBAREZZH
TELBU -BORKRBLREELE
EFHAFRE AHBEFRBETE
iz A] g8 3R R + RIS SR K AR RIRL(E -
i 3R & B A B 2 AT U B SR AR K R %
BzEEE MAEEEEE SRR
BEERBARDDETZEMZEMRE
BUREE BREZELZSHEE
ZEEEELEIIDEEZEM 2 E A
BE-CHAZHEREBSETEHEHE
& AR B -

WASERAHNEE BELKKBA
BeAVFEFRIBEBHERGH
P RIR AR 0 & BB 2 48 o P RE

27
s ©

AEBERKRBRE AR AR ZERE
RERARMEABMB RN E
3(f)



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

—  buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold

3.

FESZFTHEE#)

(h H%E BERRE
THEME - BERREEB THIEEK
AN RFHERBREBEEREESR
B 5 R

— RiEEeRAmEREELE2®

land, where the fair value of the buildings could be FoHEAFEEHSHIBFEA
measured separately from the fair value of the leasehold EEELTH s A FESRAGTE:
land at the inception of the lease; and N

—  other items of plant and equipment. — HtmELEKMEHER -

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant and BEME  BE KRR EK A MR

equipment includes the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and
removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads

and borrowing costs.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in the income statement

on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at each balance sheet date,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

AR -BEERGSTIRA - FHRERIREREB A

RIREBRBAEMRR (HERE)ZH
FHARAREELIZEERTE
AREERA

WESHE-—BEWE BELKREMRE
EZBGALERSREFREZEA
AZREEIMZEZREE  LRRE
HHEE BERERER -

TERERENE BEERRBZMEE
AERERA - AERER EE A5 R
HEE (B )FTE - AMEBEEKRAE -
Bt EAFR MBREELRFEES
REEFERRE  EAGEAZHcFE
REMELEAR -
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over
the shorter of the unexpired term of the lease and their
estimated useful lives of not more than 50 years after the

date of completion.

— Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter

of their estimated useful lives or the lease term.

—  Qil pipeline and ancillary facilities, and natural gas pipeline
network and ancillary facilities are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of the joint venture

enterprise and their estimated useful lives.

3.

FESZFTHEE#)

(h H%E BWERREE)

— EBEEREHELHIZBFHERHER
TZHEFHRAEAIERER
(5 Rk B B R 5t T 48 38505 ) (A B
RERE)FE -

— HEVXRKEZRGHATEAFR
FEHEPRUBREERE)R
%0

— HMEREERBRRXAREEH
MEEERBREEDEZ FER
FHEHEGAAERFR (AR
RERE)FE -

—  Reéfiling stations 10 years — 4L 104
—  Oil and gas properties 10 years — HAREE 10%F
—  Furniture, fixtures and - BEM EBEERER

office equipment 3 — 5years N 3E5F
—  Motor vehicles 5 — 8 years — B”=E 5E8F

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

(i) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Oil exploitation rights

Qil exploitation rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses and are amortised on
the units of production method utilising only proven and

probable oil reserves in the depletion base.

H

E-EHUE BERRXEZEBOAET
BzrEAFER  LEEZIHD Z2HAE
BIRAEBEERSE M5 & EMRR
TE - BEZAGCAFTFREEFS®RER
(B )R BFEITRE °

() BREE (BERM)

B FIRE

B B AR IR A AN OB R At B 8 R AT
HEBRIIE YERBRER EZRK
BN el Do R B A EE AR B -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. XEETHE®

(Continued)

() Intangible assets (other than goodwill) () BREE (FERI)E)
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets comprise costs which are
directly attributable to: researching and analysing existing
exploration data; conducting geological studies, exploratory
drilling and sampling; examining and testing extraction and
treatment methods; and compiling pre-feasibility and feasibility
studies. Exploration and evaluation assets also include the
payment to acquire the right to explore, the entry premiums paid
to gain access to areas of interest and amounts payable to third
parties to acquire interests in existing projects. Assets used in
exploration and evaluation activities are classified oil and gas

properties included in property, plant and equipment.

During the initial stage of a project, exploration and evaluation
costs are expensed as incurred. Expenditure on a project after it
has reached a stage at which there is a high degree of
confidence in its viability is capitalised as exploration and
evaluation assets and not amortised, and transferred to oil
exploitation rights if the project proceeds. If a project does not
prove viable, all irrecoverable costs associated with the project
are expensed in the income statement. Exploration and
evaluation assets are stated at cost less impairment losses, if

any.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer
to the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held under finance
leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified

as operating leases.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to income statement in equal instalments over
the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
income statement in the accounting period in which they

are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the

lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(k) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised,
but are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is
reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from

indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which

the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is

treated as a revaluation decrease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(k) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

excluding goodwill (Continued)
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

() Financial instruments

(i)  Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised in the balance sheet when
a Group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other
than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest would be

immaterial.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables

or held-to-maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity in
the investments revaluation reserve with the exception of
impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective
interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses
on monetary assets, which are recognised directly in profit
or loss. Where the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in the investments revaluation

reserve is included in profit or loss for the period.

Dividends on available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to

receive the dividends is established.

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the
balance sheet date. The change in fair value attributable
to translation differences that result from a change in
amortised cost of the asset is recognised in profit or loss,

and other changes are recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the

balance sheet at cost less impairment losses.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through
profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the

investment have been impacted.

For equity securities, a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of the security below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

0]

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an

adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is

determined and recognised as follows:

For trade and other current receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, where the effect of discounting is
material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised cost
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for
financial assets which are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical loss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to

the collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which have
been determined had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

—  For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss
that has been recognised directly in equity is
removed from equity and is recognised in profit or
loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that asset previously recognised

in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss in respect
of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair

value of such assets is recognised directly in equity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt
securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair
value can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised. Reversals of
impairment losses in such circumstances are recognised

in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable included in trade and other receivables, whose
recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to the
allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off

directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial assets (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the

financial asset, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets

designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds

received.

3. FEEHBXR#E)

0

ST R#E)

() HEBEEEE)

BRI FOX
ERNEZEZRANTEMBKEE
ZEHEKARRNBEABA D #

FMEWMAZHEZ BRANXEKEE
BRAREERARRREEKRAKRE
B BEEZ BN FHABREH
M (EE )T E 2 F = o

B TAZRARERH KEME
RMEERRAFESAER
R BEERIN -

AL TERR R 5 B E
EEAEEAEELNRRERE
ZAENENERE  ANK B
MBEEMZEEMBREZBX
BoARREOHFEL T 5 —HE
B ARETERLERMBEE
oM ANEBEL RER TR RE
FARZBREDRERRER -
VHREZHNECHEBEE  AIAKE
BeERERNEEZRERRR
AREZB N 2 HERE B B HE - i
REHERE EL%%W%FZ%
BRZBRBRERNEE K
%E%%%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁéu&
HADUAERAZEREES -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)  Financial liabilities and equity instrument
issued by the Group

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either

financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the

substance of the contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue

costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss or other financial
liabilities. All financial liabilities of the Group are classified
as other financial liabilities. Other financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, with interest expense

recognised on an effective yield basis.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the

financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued)
(i)  Financial liabilities and equity instrument
issued by the Group (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled

or they expire.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for

the purpose of the cash flow statement.

(n) Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location

and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those

inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories, is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in

which the reversal occurs.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash

flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable

can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities (Continued)
Provision for future decommisioning and restoration is
recognised in full on the installation of oil and gas properties.
The amount recognised is the present value of the estimated
future expenditure determined in accordance with local
conditions and requirements. A corresponding addition to the
related oil and gas properties of an amount equivalent to the
provision is also created. This is subsequently depreciated as
part of the costs of the oil and gas properties . Any change in
the present value of the estimated expenditure other than due to
passage of time which is regarded as interest expense, is
reflected as an adjustment to the provision and oil gas

properties.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or hon-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be
a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be

measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be

recognised as a provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(p) Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.
(0 Current tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
income statement because it excludes items of income or
expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

(i) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the

accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

Taxation (Continued)

(i) Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, and jointly controlled entities, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are

expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the balance sheet date, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and

liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Employees’ benefits
(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their

present values.

(i) Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair

value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest. At
each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of
the number of equity instruments expected to vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period, with a corresponding adjustment to the share

option reserve.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
other parties are measured at the fair value of the goods
or services received, except where the fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at
the fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured
at the date the Group obtains the goods or the

counterparty renders the service.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

Employees’ benefits (Continued)

(i) Share-based payments (Continued)

For cash-settled share-based payments, a liability equal
to the portion of the goods or services received is
recognised at the current fair value determined at each

balance sheet date.

(i) Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
for all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The
assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of
the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s contributions as employer vest fully with the

employees when contributed into the Scheme.

The Group has joined a mandatory central pension
scheme organised by the PRC government for certain of
its employees, the assets of which are held separately
from those of the Group. Contributions made are based
on a percentage of the eligible employees’ salaries and
are charged to profit or loss as they became payable, in
accordance with the rules of the scheme. The employer’s

contributions vest fully once they are made.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are
presented in the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (“functional currency”). For the
purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results
and financial position of each Group entity are expressed in
Hong Kong dollar which is the functional currency of the
Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated

financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of individual entities,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur, which
form part of the net investment in a foreign operation, and which
are recognised in the exchange reserve and recognised in profit

or loss on disposal of the net investment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated to Hong Kong dollar using exchange rates prevailing
at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuated significantly during the period, in
which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as
equity and transferred to the Group’s exchange reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

(s) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for

their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t) Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which represents a
separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of
a separate major line of business or geographical area of
operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to

resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale, if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is

abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented on the face of the income statement,

which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation;

and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued

operation.

(u) Related parties
For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is

considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one
or more intermediaries, to control the Group or exercise
significant influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint control over

the Group;
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(u) Related parties (Continued)

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common control;

(i) the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in

which the Group is a venturer;

(iv)  the party is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Group’s parent, or a close family
member of such an individual, or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of such

individuals;

(v)  the party is a close family member of a party referred to in
(i) or is an entity under the control, joint control or

significant influence of such individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which is for
the benefit of employees of the Group or of any entity that

is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that

individual in their dealings with the entity.

(v) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is
engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject
to risks and rewards that are different from those of other

segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment information
as the primary reporting format and geographical segment
information as the secondary reporting format for the purposes

of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v) Segment reporting (Continued)

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and liabilities
include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those

that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment.

3.
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Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
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(i) Sale of crude oil

Revenue is recognised when crude oil is delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the crude oil and

the related risks and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(w) Revenue recognition (Continued)

3. FEGEE®)

(w) W AG&SB (2)
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(i) Sale of natural gas
Revenue from sale of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG ")
and natural gas in refilling stations is recognised upon

completion of the gas filling transactions.

(i) Rental/pipeline leasing income from operating
leases

Rental/pipeline leasing income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in income statement in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in
income statement as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in which

they are earned.

(iv)  Transportation, storage and unloading services
income

Revenue from provision of crude oil transportation,

storage and unloading services is recognised upon

performance of the services.

(v)  Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis
by reference to the principal outstanding using the

effective interest method.

(i) HEXAR
it 2 R am R (&1L
RDRRXARBEERATINRE
HER ZTREER -

(i) KELELEEHEZHE
EEHE LA
RELEEEAEAT MR ZES
SEBHERARBRRER
TFOn BERRREZHE
HEmMABEMEFT T AEERRKRE
REEEEMBMaE 2 BRI
ERlm - EREEAEEERBR
REARBREESFEZTH
DEHD HAHEENRINES
HIEER B A -

) E# - w#FEREGREZ
WA

R MR E S 77 & H RS

Z WA T B IR A B R o WA

TEREHEN  BENKREMEZ

S0

V)  FEKA
MNEBMARKEEASHRERE
R NI SR 5K J2 B T L B BE R
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Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

4. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are operation of (i) refiling
stations supplying natural gas and LPG for vehicle use and sale
of LPG in cylinder, and (i) exploitation and sales of crude oil. The
activities relating to operation of natural gas pipeline network
were discontinued during the year as a result of disposal of a
subsidiary and the activities of provision of crude oil

transportation, storage and unloading services were

discontinued in the prior year (note 11).

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised

in turnover during the year is as follows:

4, ZEH

Az R

AEBZTIEXBRLLONRERIER
ARARARRBCAMR M RIHE
B R QM R - DA R i) B 5% K2 35 & IR
HoBBEHE-—XMBEAR  RARE
ERMEARIEBRCRFEARLERE
e R mE - 7 RERRE 2%
BAEREFRLELE (HFE1) -

FRAEZXRRAZIBHEIERER

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FATT
(restated)
(F&E5)
Continuing operations: FEGEEER:
Natural gas and LPG RNR KR A R
— sales of natural gas and LPG at — G uBEERARR
refilling stations BAEEHER 35,858 26,553
— sales of LPG in cylinder — HEREERLARR - 3,467
Sales of crude oil tHE R\ 4,206 294
40,064 30,314
Discontinued operations: (note 77) EBRILEEER: (fi711)
Pipeline leasing income EEEERA 2,674 1,091
Provision of crude oil transportation, storage and 12t R HE S - E1FE XL
unloading services N AR 7% = 44,661
2,674 45,752
42,738 76,066
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

5. OTHER INCOME 5. Hibdg A
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FiBT
(restated)
(re=E=%)
Continuing operations: EEEET

Interest income on bank deposits RITFE FOR B MRA 743 4,653
Rental income WA 407 —
Others Hifb 60 =
1,210 4,653

Discontinued operations: (note 71) CRIEEEER : (W711)
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF B A B WA - 7
Others Hith = 179
— 186
1,210 4,839
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Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

6. OTHER GAINS AND (LOSSES), NET 6. Hithrzm X (B518) %%
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T#&T &
(restated)
(eE5)
Continuing operations: FEEEET
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments — A] f H €& & ~ (B & 18
(note 21) (P 5E21) (914) —
Impairment loss on prepaid lease payments HEBMNFIEZREEE
(note 17) (P 5E17) (2,417) —
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment  #1% - E & & 2 B EIE
(note 16) (Fff5E16) (8,337) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE Y% - E M & E 2 EiE (830) (71)
Exchange gains/(losses), net bE R e (BR)FHE 199 (3,229)
(12,299) (8,300)
Discontinued operations: (note 71) CRILEEER: (HiF11)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HE ¥ % - HE k& E 2 W 2,732 —
(9,567) (8,300)

RlFEERZER B IR D B o 2008 &F #H

0
(O}
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

7. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 7. XEERE
Loss for the year is arrived at after charging: AFEEFEBBENRE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET
(restated)
(=75)
(a) Finance costs (a) R & A& 4
Continuing operations: FHEEEET:
Interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair PR AFEFAERE 2 M
value through profit or loss BAEMNBEZ W
— Interest on bank loans and other — ARAFANEHEER
borrowings wholly repayable within ZIRTTER R EME
five years EFE - 171
Discontinued operations: (note 717) CRILEEER: (fF11)
Interest expense on financial liabilities not PR AFEFAERE M
at fair value through profit or loss BAEMNBEZ W
— Interest on bank loans and other — ARAFANEHEER
borrowings wholly repayable within five ZRITERNEAME
years EFE = 27,835
— 28,006
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Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

7. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

7. XEEBE@#)

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHB T
(restated)
(g=5)
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ LEIREX (BFEESE
remuneration) Bil &)
Continuing operations: FIEEEETR:
Salaries, wages and other benefits e LERHMER 11,560 9,422
Equity settled share-based payment BABE ARG T2 H
expenses (note 31) (Fff 5E31) 3,877 17,627
Contributions to defined contribution TE B8 BURRET 8 2 K
retirement plan 187 164
15,624 27,213
Discontinued operations: (note 77) CRILEEER: (fF11)
Salaries, wages and other benefits He ITEREMER 83 5,577
Contributions to defined contribution E B M FUR IRET 81 2 3k
retirement plan — 358
83 5,935
15,707 33,148

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

7.

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

7. XEEBE@#)

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TER FAT
(restated)
(E:75)
(c) Other items (c)HMIEH
Continuing operations: PHEEEER
Cost of inventories FERA 18,605 18,323
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE N &
— current year — RNEE 742 816
— overprovision in prior year — P FEHBEEE (10) —
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BMEREEITE
(note 16) (Bt £16) 6,905 4,509
Amortisation of i
— prepaid lease payments* (note 17) — AEAEMFE (faE17) 306 283
— intangible assets” (note 18) — EREE(H:E18) 218 20
Operating lease charges minimum lease KEHERTRERE
payments T 5%
— property rentals —EES 3,022 940
Provision for assets retirement obligations EEZERMELER
(note 28) (Bt +28) 338 -
Discontinued operations: (note 71) CRIEEER: (Wit11)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - - HMEREXEITE
(note 16) (Mg =E16)
— assets held for use under — RIEEHERIEFER
operating leases ZBE 9,221 11,704
— other assets — B &EE = 30,465
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 78 & T8 1 BIE B 5
(note 17) (Bt &E17) - 23
* Included in “administrative expenses” as disclosed in the consolidated * FTAREERRZITRER] -
income statement.
# Included in “direct costs” as disclosed in the consolidated income # FTAGEBRRZ[EERA] -

statement.
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Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

8. TAXATION BilE
(a) Continuing operations (a) FEBEEZXER
()  Taxation in the consolidated income statement () HEeBEaxAMAZIMEER
represents: =
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TER FHET
(restated)
(5= &E%))
Current tax BNEAR 18
— PRC income tax — R BRI

Provision for the year TN 5 S A 2,861 885

(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEEE GBRER),/
EET R (31) 74
2,830 959

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the group companies comprising the continuing
operations did not have estimated assessable profits
subject to Hong Kong profits tax during the years ended
31 December 2008 and 2007. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the applicable rates of
tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and

practices in respect thereof during the year.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the
PRC, provision for PRC enterprise income tax is
calculated based on a statutory rate of 25% (2007: 30%)

on the assessment profit of the Group.

B £2008F K&2007F12A31H 1k
FERN BREEREBELEED
ZEBARYEERMEBINGEG
B 2 fl 5T FE SR B A - il 3 A 5t
REBFSHESR HtE 2
JERTL M B IE A2 RIBFE AR
SEKEMEREER 2BITE
Pl - ZREREMRERZEAR
EEE

RIBFBEFASHANIOER - $
BEXMERERRAKTE ZE

R Biom 2 0% F B E25% (2007
F:30%)F &
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

8. TAXATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Continuing operations (Continued)

8. BIE =)

(a)

(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting

REBEEES (&)

(it

BERBRAEZ BB

loss at applicable tax rates: ERastBEuRmT :
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT
(restated)
(=E5)
Loss before taxation B 7% B /&5 18 (45,889) (35,015)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, WA BT RTE 2 BT A
calculated at the applicable tax rates EBEAERIE (10,730) (6,436)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ARG B e M E 11,944 13,910
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBWAZRETE (1,041) (6,589)
Deductible temporary difference not RERZ AR EE =58
recognised 2,688 —
(Over)/under-provision in prior years BEFE GBEER),/
EHET R (31) 74
Actual tax expense TGS 2,830 959

Discontinued operations (note 77)

(b)

(i) No provision for Hong Kong profits tax or PRC

enterprise income tax has been made by the

entities comprising the discontinued operations as

these entities either have no assessable profit

during the year or have unrelieved tax losses

brought forward to offset the assessable profit.

ERILEESERE (Ht11)

0)

SHEERERERK ZRF
W EHRE B NGB L+ E
CEMSHES BRAZE
A B I 4 R SR A i A
AR AR s A 2 A
BARPHM AR -
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Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

8. TAXATION (Continued)

8. BlE (&)

(b) Discontinued operations (note 11) (Continued) (b) ERILEEER (Wit11)(E)
(i)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (i) REBBEFEZBRBIH
loss at applicable tax rates: ERastBEuRmT :

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHETT FB T

(restated)

(re=75)

Loss before taxation B 7% B /&5 18 (3,898) (38,871)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, RE AT RAE 2B B

calculated at the applicable tax rates EEELERIE (707) (12,827)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TAI B2 BB 2 2,038 14,186

Tax effect of non-taxable income BARTUA Z TR & (1,331) (1,359)

Actual tax expense

BERBH -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T 5t & )

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 9. EEML
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of BIEEBSATIKGHEIGIIGERECES
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows: e
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits scheme payments 2008
fees in kind contributions Sub-total (note) Total
VABE 13 32 £
e R Bk 2RI 2008
Eswme REYAG FHEIRR NGt (B aE) k]
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
TERT TET FET TERT FERT TET
Executive directors HITEE
Xing Xiao Jing* piid=Tr i - 1,593 12 1,605 430 2,035
Ma Ji 5 - 260 - 260 - 260
Kong Siu Tim T - 1,118 12 1,130 361 1,491
- 2,971 24 2,995 791 3,786
Independent non- BIAEHITES
executive directors
Yip Ching Shan #2510 144 - - 144 92 236
Ni Zhenwei {52 4R (2 144 - - 144 92 236
Wong Kwok Chuen s 144 - - 144 92 236
432 - - 432 276 708
432 2,971 24 3,427 1,067 4,494

# Resigned on 3 March 2009

# 72009F3H3R Bt £
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T 5t & )

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

9. EEME »)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’  and benefits scheme payments 2007
fees inkind  contributions  Sub-total (note) Total
VAR 1 2 £+
o RES RAR - O 20074
E=we KEDIZ SHEIHE INEE (BF&E) BEe
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TET FHEIT FET FET FET
Executive directors #HITESE

Xing Xiao Jing* TSR S — 1,300 12 1,312 280 1,592
Ma Ji* 5 B = 910 — 910 — 910
Kong Siu Tim ST/ — 1,040 12 1,052 522 1,574
— 3,250 24 3,274 802 4,076

Independentnon-  BIFHRTEE

executive directors

Yip Ching Shan Z25 129 — — 129 126 255
Ni Zhenwei {72 iR (2 129 - = 129 126 255
Wong Kwok Chuen =HE 129 — — 129 126 255
387 — — 387 378 765
387 3,250 24 3,661 1,180 4,841

During the year, no emoluments (2007: nil) were paid by the
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. None
of the directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for
the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007.

# Resigned on 3 March 2009

FR - AEEBVERETANEESZIAHES
(20074 : MIERBEMASRIMAR
SRR REBIERABRBIHBE -BZE
20084 &2007F12A318 IE F /5 # &
EEWMEXRERETMAMS -

* 200943 A3H BHE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 9.

Note: These represent the estimated value of share options granted to the
directors under the Company’s share option scheme. The value of
these share options is measured according to the Group’s accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions as set out in note 3(q)(ii)
and, in accordance with that policy, includes adjustments to reverse
amounts accrued in previous years where grants of equity

instruments are forfeited prior to vesting.

The details of the Company’s share option scheme, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in the

directors’ report and note 31.

EEME w)

BieE : MR N Z R BERREAN R B BRER
ERTESF EREZGFEER LER
% 2 1B {8 75 A8 #5% BT 5E3(0)(ii) AT 3 A AR 13 32
NeRHZAKERFTBRRAE MRE
ZHE BEREZEEIBESNEEN
BRI Z FIREBRAT AERBEFERTZ
BE B A

ARREREZFE(REMRHBRE
ZIERRRBBIEREFTSRE RN
AT -

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 10. e #H AT

Of the five individuals with the highest paid emoluments, two
(2007: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in
note 9. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of these

other three (2007: two) individuals are as follows:

507 & = ¥ A T # - 26 (20074 : 3fiL)
REZE HEME D EMFORE - £#43
fiz (2007F : 2f ) HZREaFALZ B 42
LERIIN

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$’'000

Fi#&T FHE T

Salaries and other emoluments e M E M E 2,055 1,690
Share-based payments ARG 9 32 15 2 R IE 1,189 683
Retirement scheme contributions RARET B 19 12
3,263 2,385
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Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

10.

11.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
The emoluments of the three (2007: two) non-director individuals

with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

10.

EEmALTE)

= = ¥ 2307 (20074 : 21 ) IEE = A
TZMENFTI&HE

2008 2007

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AB AE

Below HK$1,000,000 1,000,000/ 7T A 1 —
HK$1,000,000 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,000/ 7t—-1,500,0007% 7T 2 2
3 2

During the year, no emoluments (2007: nil) were paid by the
Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a

compensation for loss of office.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On 18 December 2008, the Group completed the disposal of its

natural gas pipeline network business to a independent third
party for a consideration of HK$15,000,000 through disposal of
the subsidiary, namely Statemoon Limited (“Statemoon”) (note
33(a)).

On 24 October 2007, the Group’s crude oil transportation,
storage and unloading services operations were discontinued
following the disposal of two subsidiaries, namely Bamber
Resources Limited and Xinjiang Xingmei Oil-Pipeline Co., Ltd.

(collectively known as “Bamber Group”) (note 33(b)).

11.

75 B A A8 S S E ] B (2007
FE)TEMANESHFAL ERR
FMAER AR KB 2 Rk
RRERZ mE -

B4R EEEE
MR2008F 1281810 » A& B3 1B &Kt

BAFRmARRRR (Eml) 5wk
BYBE=ZTHERRREBPRER
K 18 415,000,000/ 7T (M 5¥33(@)) °

2007108248 - AR EBEE L EMR
MEAR (BNEDHERERAE LB
EXRHEBERAR(ABIEDE
B)BERIELERMER FFER
i % e % % (B 5E33(b) ) ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The (loss)/profit for the period/year from the discontinued

operations is analysed as follows:

SBEMDTIT

11. SRIEEZERE &)
R, FRDRIEEEER Y (BB)

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
(restated)
(&)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of Statemoon and/or HERBN SNEDHEE S
Bamber Group (note 33) (B18) Wz (M 7E33) (87,531) 66,909
Loss for the year on FAEE
— crude oil transportation, storage and — RmiEs - F1F & H
unloading services operations Rk 75 = (28,076)
— Natural gas pipeline network — RAREBHEE (3,898) (10,795)
(91,429) 28,038
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 11. ERIEEZERE &)
(@  The results of the discontinued operations are as follows: @) BERIEKEXBIHEENT :

2008 2007

Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000

B 3 FERT FE T

(restated)

(LE5)

Turnover - 4815 2,674 45,752
Cost of sales and services $HE K AR 75 K A (9,221) (60,654)
Gross loss EE (6,547) (4,902)
Other income E b A 5 - 186
Other gains and (losses), net Emzmk (BE)F5 6 2,732 -
Administrative expenses THER (83) (6,320)
Loss from operations K EE (3,898) (11,036)
Finance costs RSN 7(a) - (27,835)
Loss before taxation B B% Al g5 18 (3,898) (38,871)
Income tax F 15 %t - =
Loss for the period BN &5 18 7 (3,898) (38,871)

RlFTEERZE R B IR D B o 2008 &F #H

o
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Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

11.

12.

13.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 11. BRILEZERE &)
(b)  The cash flows of the discontinued operations are as (b) ERIERLEEBZHELBELD
follows:
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAT
(restated)
(&&&E75)
Net cash inflow from operating activities KEEHEE RS FHE 2,591 52,386
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEEHMAZRES T8 - (288)
Net cash outflow from financing activities mEETHAZES T - (49,713)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HE NIRSZSEBYIEINERE 2,591 2,385
(©)  The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of () MEEDEBNREHERHZE
Statemoon and Bamber Group at the date of disposal are ERAGECEERERENMHZE
disclosed in note 33. 33 °
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12. XAEREFAFARILBE
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the RABREREARIEGEBERERED
Company includes a loss of HK$133,395,000 (2007: a profit of &P AN A B 7 R 7k 2 B518133,395,000
HK$18,266,000) which has been dealt with in the financial 78 7T (20074F : )i #118,266,000/& 7T ) °
statements of the Company.
DIVIDEND 13. &2

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2008 (2007: nil).

FEWAEZIKZEEH £2008F12831H
IEFEZEm S (20074  £) o
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14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14.
(@) Basic (loss)/earnings per share
The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$140,148,000 (2007: HK$7,936,000) and the weighted
average number of 4,226,179,000 ordinary shares (2007:
4,105,506,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year,

calculated as follows:

(i) (Loss)/earnings attributable to equity holders

S (BE) B

(@) SEREX (EBE) EBFH
BRERN (BB) BIERERNAR YL
AR M FE A A JE 15 B 18140,148,00078 7T
(20074F : 7,936,000 70) * A R FAE
217 E B AR 2 N S 39 204,226,179,000
% 3 38 f% (20074 : 4,105,506,0000% & &
BT AT -

() FLEZEREFEAEL

of the Company (E1E)  ZBF

2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T T

(restated)

(reE=75)
Continuing operations SRS (48,719) (35,974)
Discontinued operations BRI T (91,429) 28,038
(140,148) (7,936)

(i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(i) ZERMEFYE

2008 2007

’000 000

T T B&

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M1A1BE B &ITE B 4,224,884 3,585,134

Effect of shares issued under the placing REEB TR Z T E

(note 32(a)(iii)) (Fff 5E32(2)(ii) ) - 320,718
Effect of share options exercised BITEEREZE

(note 32(a)(ii) (Bt 5£32(a)i)) 1,295 199,654
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at M12A31H 2 ARk

31 December In#E 5 2 4,226,179 4,105,506

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

14. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)
(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share
Diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 31
December 2008 and 31 December 2007 is not presented as
the Company’s outstanding share options during the years had
anti-dilutive effect on the basic (loss)/earnings per share from

continuing and discontinued operations.

15. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s
business segments. Business segment information is chosen as
the primary reporting format because this is more relevant to the

Group’s internal financial reporting.

Business segments
The Group is currently engaged in the following businesses:

Continuing operations
Natural gas and LPG: Operation of gas refilling stations
supplying natural gas and LPG
for vehicle use and sale of LPG

in cylinder

Qil exploitation: Exploitation and sale of crude il

Discontinued operations

The Group was also involved in the operation of natural gas
pipeline network and crude oil transportation storage and
unloading services which were discontinued as set out in

note 11.

Operation of natural gas Leasing of the natural gas

pipeline network: pipeline network

Crude oil transportation Provision of crude oil

storage and unloading transportation, storage and

services: unloading facilities.

There are no sales or trading transactions between the business
segments. These segments are the basis on which the Group

reports its primary segment information.

14.

15.

Bk (B8B) B @)
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# £2008F12H31H &2007412H31H
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BEYE RUERIZEFESRE
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A H BB B B N 85 & IR
ERILEEXF

AEBNMERERAREERK LR
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

Segment information about these businesses is set out as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008

15. DR E &)
YN (F)
BRREER I DBEREFIMT :

& F2008% 125310 1L F &

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
FHRCEER ERILEEES
Operation of
Natural gas Qil natural gas
and LPG exploitation Total pipeline network Consolidated
RARAR BEXAR
BALRER Rk k) EEEE o]
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TFHET TFHET FHET FHET FHET
Results 3
Revenue from external customers RENATE 2 W& 35,858 4,206 40,064 2,674 42,738
Segment results D EELE 13,785 (1,914) 11,871 (6,547) 5,324
Unallocated operating income and expenses AP EWARER (53,388) 2,649 (50,739)
Loss from operations KEEE (41,517) (3,898) (45,415)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HEKBAREIE - (87,531) (87,531)
Share of loss of a jointly controlled EEERZERE
entity NGl (4,372) = (4,372)
Loss before taxation [ % A &S 18 (45,889) (91,429) (137,318)
Income tax FT{g %t (2,830) - (2,830)
Loss for the year KEFEHER (48,719) (91,429) (140,148)

© — RlFTEERZE R B IR D B o 2008 &F #H
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued)

15. S ERERE (&)

EHOEE)

&t F20085F12H531H IF E£ & ()

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
RRESER ERILESER
Operation of
Natural gas Oil natural gas
and LPG exploitation Total pipeline network Consolidated
RARR HWERAR
RALRAR RIBBIR g EEPEE &E
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FTERT FHET FHET
Assets and liabilities SERERE
Segment assets DEWEE 22,537 86,095 108,632 - 108,632
Unallocated assets APEREE - - 41,409 = 41,409
Total assets BB E 22,537 86,095 150,041 - 150,041
Segment liabilities PHBaRE 1,500 4,482 5,982 - 5,982
Unallocated liabilities ADEEE - - 11,630 - 11,630
Total liabilities BfERH 1,500 4,482 17,612 - 17,612
Other segment information HipHEpEH
Depreciation and amortisation e R 3,342 3,365 6,707 9,221 15,928
Unallocated depreciation and amortisation AOBITE N EE - - 722 - 722
3,342 3,365 7,429 9,221 16,650
Capital expenditure incurred during the year ENELXEZEARATH 2,127 23,693 25,820 - 25,820
Unallocated capital expenditure incurred FREEZRABRER
during the year S - - 1,064 - 1,064
2,127 23,693 26,884 - 26,884
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

15. S ERERE (&)

Business segments (Continued) (BN (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & F2007F12531H IE F &
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RELEES BRIEBEXE

Operation of Crude oil

natural gas transportation,

Natural gas Ol pipeline storage and
and LPG  exploitation Total network unloading services Total  Consolidated

RBRER BEXRAR RAEH #F
RICRAR  RAFRE nE EEE% N 0 ek R 7 Fik Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TELT TER TET TEL TAER TR

(restated) (restated)
(=31) (m=E3)
Result £}

Turnover from external customers KEMRBEE 2 EER 30,020 294 30,314 1,091 44,661 45,752 76,066
Segment results DE LR 8,623 714 7,909 (10,613) 5711 (4,902 3,007
Unallocated operating income and expenses APEEEWANRER (42,759 (182) (5,952) (6,134) (48,887)
Loss from operations KEEE (34,844) (10,795) 241)  (11,036) (45,880)
Finance costs A& A [7) - (27,835)  (27,835) (28,006)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE KB A 7 U - - 66,909 66,909 66,909
Loss before taxation BRi A B 1R (35,015) (10,795) 38,833 28,038 6,977)
Income tax {5 # (959) - - - (959)
Loss for the year NEEER (35,974) (10,795) 38833 28,038 (7,936)

8 — RAIFEERZERBR A A * 2008 F K
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
Business segments (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Continued)

15. DR E &)
¥BSm(E)
& F20075F12H31H IE E£ & ()

Continuing operations Discontinued operations

BEQEES BRIFEREXE
Operation of Crude oil
natural gas transportation,
Natural gas Ol pipeline storage and
and LPG  exploitation Total network  unloading services Total  Consolidated
AARR BE2XAR RbBEH #F
RICRAR  RAFRE ok EiEES N 0 e R 7 Fk: Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TER THT TEL TER THT
(restated) (restated)
(m=E31) (=E3)
Assets and liabilities BEREHE
Segment assets PHEE 25,504 63,803 89,397 104,460 — 104,460 193,857
Unallocated assets AAREE - — 114,055 - - - 114,055
Total assets BEE 25,594 63,803 203,452 104,460 — 104,460 307,912
Segment liabilities AHEE 7,835 156 7,991 - - - 7,991
Unallocated liabilities APEEE - - 39,072 - - - 39,072
z
3 Total liabilities AENE 7,835 156 47,063 - - - 47,063
QL — — —— —— —— ——— S———————————
o
)
§ Other segment information Hib HEpEE
N Depreciation and amortisation E R 3,416 1,028 4,444 11,704 30,488 42,192 46,636
S
® Unallocated depreciation and amortisation RORMEREH - - 368 - — = 368
L]
[q)]
)
>
2_ 3,416 1,028 4,812 11,704 30,488 42,192 47,004
wv
o ——
S
@
< Capital expenditure incurred during the year FRNEEZEBAYH 2,592 63,539 66,131 - 300 300 66,431
of Unallocated capital expenditure incurred FREEZADPRER
o
5 during the year ) — - 2,145 — - — 2,145
2
.
3
=3 2,592 63,539 68,276 - 300 300 68,576
% ——
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Geographical segments

DEPHRE =)
#h [ 43 &8

In presenting information on the basis of geographical EHESHE2NNERR  DHFREER
segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical FPHEME D  REBZHIHMEERE
location of customers. The Group’s segment assets and capital AYXHAREEZFEMES D - ZlS &=
expenditure are based on the geographical location of the ExXrZadE(BEEB) REBKE
assets. The Group mainly operates in the PRC (including Hong S E) o
Kong) and the United States of America (the “USA”).
For the year ended 31 December 2008 & F20085 125315 IF F &
The PRC The USA Total
thE E L] “ag
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
THET THET FTHET
Segment revenue 7 U R
Revenue from external customers attributable to: KEIINARRE Z W=
LATR 275 e {h
— Continuing operations — FEKEER 35,858 4,206 40,064
— Discontinued operations — BERIEEEER 2,674 = 2,674
38,532 4,206 42,738
Segment assets DEEE
— Continuing operations — HEKEED 66,387 83,654 150,041
Segment liabilities HEHEE
— Continuing operations — B ER 13,419 4,193 17,612
Capital expenditure incurred during the year FREEZEARLTH
— Continuing operations — BB ER 4,450 22,434 26,884
— Discontinued operations — BRI EETE = = =
4450 22434 26,884

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥

T
e
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15. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) DEIRE &)
Geographical segments (Continued) WESE &)
For the year ended 31 December 2007 & E2007F12H31H IEF F
The PRC The USA Total
H ES HEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAT FAT FAT
(restated)
(5& &%)
Segment revenue pal= 1l g
Revenue from external customers REINRE R 2 Wz
attributable to: VAT 275 P4 -
— Continuing operations — HFEREER 30,020 294 30,314
— Discontinued operations — BERIEREEER 45,752 = 45,752
75,772 294 76,066
Segment assets DEEE
— Continuing operations — BERKEER 244,109 63,803 307,912
244,109 63,803 307,912
Segment liabilities HHEE
— Continuing operations — B E 46,907 156 47,063
46,907 156 47,063
Capital expenditure incurred during the year FRES 2 A AT H
— Continuing operations —HELEER 4,737 63,539 68,276
— Discontinued operations — BRI EEER 300 = 300
5,037 63,539 68,576
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. Y% - &= REHE

The Group E
Buildings Natural gas Furniture,
held for Oil pipeline pipeline network fixtures and
own Leasehold and ancillary and ancillary  Refilling  Oil and gas office Motor
use improvements facilities facilites ~ stations  properties equipment  vehicles Total
B BE
#EER HER XARTEER RER
By HEYERE EERE REERNE A HREE  HAERE RE a8
(note b) (note a) (note c) (note d)
(Mi3Ep) (Wsa)  (Kiske) (FzEd)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TER TAR TER TAR TET TAT TAL TR
Cost: A
At 1 January 2007 #2007F1 A18 22,690 140 655,284 185,454 27,985 - 3,262 3,631 898,446
Exchange adjustments R 876 - 20,267 12,808 1,933 - % 108 36,088
Additions NE 220 = 289 = 2,367 20,157 92 2,069 25,194
Disposals HE - - - (465) © - (12) (660)  (1,046)
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 33(b)) & M B 2 ) (B 733(0) ) (18,664) - (675,840) - - - (2,462) (2,782) (699,748)
At 31 December 2007 and #2007F12A318 &

1 January 2008 200851 A1H 5,122 140 - 197,797 32,276 20,157 976 2,466 258,934
Exchange adjustments [E X% 325 - - 12,514 2,045 (187) 24 33 14,754
Additions NE 186 23 = = 2,127 17,855 264 591 21,046
Disposals el (3,443) (140) - (11212 (2,208) - (182) (422)  (17,627)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 33(a)) HEH B AR (H 33()) - - - (199,099 - - - — (199,099
At 31 December 2008 #2008F12A318 2,190 23 = - 34,220 37,825 1,082 2,668 78,008
Accumulated depreciation and B ERAME:

impairment:

At 1 January 2007 #2007F1A18 6,624 5 244,244 76,053 13,546 = 1,707 2,002 344,181

Exchange adjustments [ iH% 260 - 7,554 5,664 1,035 - 47 57 14,617
Charge for the year (note 7) FRXi (H5E7) 984 28 29,169 11,704 2,805 1,008 469 511 46,678
Written back on disposal HER R - - - (84) (5) - ) (476) (568)
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR (6,270) - (280,967) - - - (1,456) (1,556) (290,249)
At 31 December 2007 and #2007F 124318 &

1 January 2008 2008%1A1H 1,698 33 - 93,337 17,381 1,008 764 538 114,659
Exchange adjustments R 102 - - 5,999 1,128 (1) 17 20 7,245
Charge for the year (note 7) FAZ L (K3E7) 97 32 - 9,221 3,036 3,147 131 462 16,126
Written back on disposals HER &R (1,043) (56) - (2,916) (564) - (120) 319 (5,018
Disposal of a subsidiary HEHBAR - - - (105,641) - - - —  (105,641)
Impairment loss AEBR - - - - 8,337 - - - 8,337
At 31 December 2008 720085124318 754 9 - - 29,318 4,134 792 701 35708
Carrying amount: IREE:

At 31 December 2008 720085124318 1,436 14 - - 4,902 33,691 290 1,967 42,300
At 31 December 2007 #2007F12A318 107 - 104,460 14,895 19,149 212 1,928 144,275

RlFEERZER B IR D B o 2008 &F #H
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

@)

The natural gas pipeline network and ancillary facilities
and refilling stations are situated in Korla of Xinjiang

Autonomous Region, the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, Lejion Gas
Natural Gas Co., Ltd. (“Lejion Gas”), a subsidiary of the
Company established in the PRC, whose principal
activities are operation of natural gas pipeline network and
natural gas refilling stations, entered into a written
agreement with its PRC joint venture partner (the “Venture
Partner”), which holds 20% of the equity interest in Lejion
Gas. Pursuant to the agreement, the operation of the
natural gas pipeline network and ancillary facilities (the
“Assets”) were transferred to the Venture Partner for a
period from 1 January 2005 to 30 June 2006 (the
“Operation Period”). During the Operation Period, Lejion
Gas did not share any income or expenses of the

operation.

Upon expiry of the Operation Period, Lejion Gas and the
Venture Partner entered into another agreement (the
“Agreement”) such that the Venture Partner would use the
Assets of Lejion Gas and Lejion Gas was entitled to
receive payments from the Venture Partner for a period
from 1 October 2006 to 31 March 2008. The payments
were calculated on the basis of 1.75% of the gross sales
generated from the use of the Assets by the Venture
Partner. In 2008, the Group and the Venture Partner
entered into a supplementary agreement such that the
period of the use of the Assets would be extended by
nine months from 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008 and

the other terms of the Agreement remained unchanged.

16. Y1¥ - BERRE &)

@ RAREBWEKLEERENRME
RN hENBEEREERY

-

m o

£ =2005%12A318 It F E - &
RNA—ARAF B 2 E R A
EMF R E AR R E (R R
RDEEFRFEEBH(TEER
1 7B P R R20%MR %) &
EEHHE - FEMREZEEE
BREERAREEEERRA

R AR Uh o AR B W R

HE I

¥ K I

Xt

REEMEERE  FIRRRE R
EREBHESTIT LHE ZH
&) MESEBHEEERNE
MRzEE MABERREER
2006510418 £200843531H
M-rRegBHrBRER - 66
ERARCEBHEREEMGH
E BT 21.75%5T & ° 720085 -
REBEAGEEHTL-HERT
MEFERAEEZHMEEHA
200854 A1H & & 1L {8 A £2008
F12A318 -+ M % % 3% H ftb f

1 % -

BIERTE -

EERBLEREERB(EEDZ
% J8 7 7200541 A 18 £200646
S0H I EAfE ([ B AR ) 88 %
EEBH -REERH  FE
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The arrangement under the Agreement meets the
definition of leases in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 3(j). The Assets with the carrying
value as at 31 December 2008 of HK$Nil (2007:
HK$104,460,000) were disclosed as assets leased out
held under operating leases. The payments received from
the Venture Partner during the year ended 31 December
2008 amounting to HK$ 2,674,000 (2007: HK$1,091,000)
was included under the pipeline leasing income in the
income statement in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 3(j). The Assets were disposed of

during the year as set out in note 11.

The oil pipeline and ancillary facilities consist of an ail
pipeline of approximately 70 kilometers, connecting the
Tahe Oilfield and Lun Tai Railway Station in Xinjiang
Autonomous Region and ancillary facilities including oil
tanks and loading bays to facilitate the operation of the oil
pipeline. The oil pipeline and ancillary facilities was

disposed of in 2007 as set out in note 11.

During the year, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amount of its refiling gas stations belonging
to the natural gas and LPG segment. The review led to
the recognition of an impairment loss of HK$8,337,000
(2007: nil), which has been recognised in profit or loss.
The recoverable amount of the relevant assets has been
determined on the basis of their value in use. The discount
rate used in measuring value in use was 16.39% per
annum. The discount rate used when the recoverable
amount of these assets was previously estimated in latest
year for the assessment of the assets was 15% per
annum. The impairment losses have been included in

“Other gains and losses” (note 6).

The amount included exploration and evaluation assets
incurred during the year of HK$1,258,000 (2007: nil).

16. Y1¥ - BERRE &)

Z & AN 2 & BERF S 1R 1% BT 5E3()
BB ZHEETE -R
20085F12A31B 2 REE /A ZH
7T (20074F : 104,460,000 JT) &
EEERRKEMEERAZED
& E #2 5 o B Z=2008F 12431 H
LHFE - REE¥HKEZRIE

2,674,000/ 7T (20074F : 1,091,000
7 70 ) B AR ¥R MY 5E3() AT L & 5T K
R ABRRZEBHERA -

MW IS EEERFRE

&= o
=

HEREEREBRE —HREH70
NEB-BERENHEERNESR

B e BKNElZHE MEER
i (B2 & faé i L S 1 1% ) - DA B

MEEE MM EIRE mE
MEREF M E R2007F HE °
ERAEBERTTBRRAR

K& AL AR R 5 &6 2 A0k 2z A
U Bl SR8 o B R R AT B BUR R OB
8 &5 188,337,000/ 7T (20074 :
B) ERERERR - EHEE
Zﬂqﬁlﬁﬁﬁ(%ﬁﬁzﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?ﬂfﬁ"
BRAEFEREEZCTRELSE
F16.39% ° K& T FE Bt at (4
BEMMTZEEAE 2T KEH
BER - MAZCHTABRXRAREF
15% - WMEEBBED T A TH Mk
K &8 (M E6) °

ZEBEREFRNEE 2 BIENFT
& & E1,258,00078 7T (20074 :
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The leasehold land is held under medium-term lease and
situated in the PRC. The original cost less impairment loss of
the leasehold land is HK$3,665,000 (2007: HK$6,501,000).

During the year, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amount of its prepaid lease payment belonging to
the natural gas and LPG segment. The review led to the
recognition of an impairment loss of HK$2,417,000 (2007: nil),
which has been recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets has been determined on the basis
of their value in use. The discount rate used in measuring value
in use was 16.39% per annum. The discount rate used when
the recoverable amount of these assets was previously
estimated in the latest year for the assessment of the assets
was 15% per annum. The impairment losses have been

included in “Other gains and losses” (note 6).

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 17. HEHEMFRIE
The Group -
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FA& T

Net book value at 1 January M1 A1E 28R FE 3,904 4,418
Exchange adjustments PE 5 3 & 239 277
Disposal of subsidiaries & B A A = (485)
Amortisation charge for the year (note 7) REF Z7#HE T (H5E7) (306) (306)
Impairment loss (note 6) BEEE (MFEe) (2,417) —
Net book value at 31 December MK12A318 Z R FE 1,420 3,904
Current portion of prepaid lease payments FHE A FIE 2 ANEER o (B

(included in other receivables, prepayment and A H i & W kI8 ~ TR BB

deposits (note 24)) Kit& (MisE24)) (187) (292)
Non-current portion FEBNER &R 75 1,233 3,612

TRE T R HEE A WA AT E -
FHE £ i 2 R A AR (B &5 18 43,665,000
6 7T (20074F : 6,501,000/ 7T ) °

FR-AEERFTTERRAR KRR
AMRDE 2 HERMNKRE 2 AT K E
HE - FHABRIEHBRBEEE
2,417,0007% 7T (20074 : &) ' ERIE&
FRTER - BEKE 2 AT B B8 1R 1E A
BEET ARGEFEREEZTERE
HEF16.39% c R&EFFE G el h
BEMMGHZEEE 2 T RESER -
FTAZTREREFI5% - REEFED
FEATE M 25 & 598 (P 5E6) -
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. BREAE

The Group &
Qil
exploitation
rights
THRBIERRE
HK$’000
FAT
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2007 7K200741 H18 —
Additions INE 43,382
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 7200712 A31 H K&2008%F1 A1H 43,382
Additions INE 5,838
Exchange adjustments FE o, X (809)
At 31 December 2008 200812 A31H 48,911
Accumulated amortisation: Satiisy
At 1 January 2007 12007451 H1H —
Charge for the year (note 7) FRZH (FsE7) 20
At 31 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 7200712 A31H K&2008%F1 A1H 20
Charge for the year (note 7) FRH (K &E7) 218
Exchange adjustments E 5 8 —
At 31 December 2008 200812 H31H 238
Carrying amount: BREE :
At 31 December 2008 ”2008F12A31H 48,673
At 31 December 2007 200712 A31H 43,362

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥
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18.

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The Group (Continued)
The oil exploitation rights represent rights for oil exploitation in

Grassy Trails Qil Field located in Carbon County, Utah and
Emery County, Utah, the USA and Squaw Canyon Field located
in San Juan County, Utah, the USA. The exploitation rights do
not have a termination date and are valid as long as oil and

natural gas are produced from the reserves.

The exploitation rights are initially recognised at their fair values
on acquisition with reference to professional valuer performed
by Asset Appraisal Limited. At subsequent balance sheet dates,

the exploitation rights are measured using the cost model.

Amortisation is provided to write off the cost of the exploitation
rights using the units of production method based on the proven
and probable oil and gas reserves. The amortisation was

charged to “direct costs” in the consolidated income statement.

BAEE 2)

ZF% (#)

B R G BR A 8 L 7 3 B 7 b /N Carbon
County & Emery Countyz & & & M
(Grassy Trails) & iz 7 5 B J& b JNSan
Juan Countyz % #® B H (Squaw
Canyon ) f R 5, BR 7 o F BR e I £ 4%

IERE - RERFE ML ERRAEE
B

AREBRETREBR ZAVELS
ZRAENEEMARDAETZER
fEE®RER - NEEETA  FRER
ZEN T

Wi 55 B BR AR AR AN T 3% BR AR K HE T U R
RENEEEMAETEHN - BIHER
ERARZ [EEKA AN -

INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 19. R —R#FAEESE AT
ENTITY ®"&E
The Group xE&E
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHB T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRRG @ KA 19,500 =
Less: share of post acquisition losses B DR EER E R (4,372) —
15,128 =
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19. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

19. R—EHRAEESELTZ

ENTITY (Continued) "&E#)
Particulars of the Group’s jointly controlled entity are AEEBZHRAZEEAERR ZFBN
as follows: o
Percentage
of ordinary
shares
Form of business Place of indirectly
Name of company structure incorporation held Principal activity
EERATE
AT EHE ESPE N Erquloavecck RESEE EEEH
Smart Win International Limited  Limited company The B.V.I. 50% Investment holding
SIEEEBEARAA BRAA REBRLEE REZERKR

Summarised financial information in respect of the jointly

TXHINARZESERARAZHBEE

controlled entity is set out below: B
2008
HK$’000
FHIT
Total assets BEE 30,403
Total liabilities ABE#ES (147)
Net assets BEFE 30,256
Group’s share of jointly controlled entity’s AEESHERZEESEEARIZE
net assets EFE 15,128
Turnover = =
Expenses X (8,744)
Loss for the year KEEEE (8,744)
Group’s share of jointly controlled entity’s loss RNEEFEAREB DG LR ZE#
for the year AERAIZEE (4,372)

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥

su
2
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

20. RMBASZRE

The Company =4 T
2008 2007

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHIT FA&T

Unlisted equity investment, at cost JEETIRAIZE - KA 81,147 81,145
Less: impairment loss B OREEE (81,143) (52,805)
4 28,340

(a) Details of principal subsidiaries are listed below. The class (a)

of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place of incorporation/

Particulars of
issued and paid up

TEMBRARAZHFBUOT K=

BEAEN

AR o

Proportion of ownership interest

BAEE S

Group’s

effective Held by Held by

PrEsiein Rl 5 E

Name of company capital holding the Company subsidiary Principal activity
EBRTRARE FEEER HAAE HHEBAF
AEEH SR AL AR B BRAH FRE k) BE XEEH
Elite Ascend Holdings Limited 690 shares of 100% 100% — Investment holding
US$1 each

BRERAERA R 690RR & k135 T REEKR

Chuang Xin Management 2 shares of 100% 100% — Provision of management
Services Limited HK$1 each services to Group companies

B ERRBARRA RGBT mEE DR REER RS

Genesis Energy (Hong Kong) 2 shares of 100% — 100% Provision of administrative
Limited HK$1 each services to Group companies

glET R (B7%) 2R EFIRIE T GESLPNGIESSa g
BERAA

Oriental Energy Limited 1,000 shares of 90% — 90% Investment holding

RARBRERAF

US$1 each
1,000/ B R1E T

REEK
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20. PMBATIZ®E &)

(a) (Continued) (@) (&)
Proportion of ownership interest
BEEES
Particulars of Group’s
Place of incorporation/ issued and paid up effective Held by Held by
Name of company operation capital holding the Company subsidiary Principal activity
EBTRARE FEEER BHAAT HHEAF
ATEH MR R BAFE RRE 1"E BE EEER
Statemoon Limited 1,3,4 BVI 100 shares of 100% — 100% Investment holding
US$1 each
BlRERAR1,34 EBELHS 100l BRIE T REER
Genesis Petroleum US, Inc. 4  Utah, The USA 10,000 shares of 90% - 90% Oil exploitation and sale of
US$0.01 each crude oil
Genesis Petroleum US, Inc. 4 =B + R )1 10,0008% ARRERHE RA
BR0.01E T
Xian Hong Chang Petroleum ~ PRC Registered capital 95% - 95% Consultation and technical
Development & Service RMB2,117,503.53 support for oil fields
Co., Ltd 2,3 operation
BRBEAMFAERE H & A RAARE A EER AR
ABRR7F 23 2,117,503.537C
Lejion Gas Co., Ltd. 2,4 PRC Registered capital 72% — 80% Operation of natural gas pipeline
RMB50,000,000 network and gas refilling
stations supplying natural
gas and LPG
EMFERRERAR 24 F AfRAARE BERAREBBERMBEER
50,000,0007T RERBRICA MR Z FHiavh
G Energy US Holdings Inc. 3,4 Utah, The USA 500 shares of 100% — 100% Investment holding
US$375 each
G Energy US Holdings Inc. 3,4~ £ + b )i 5008k & Bk3753% 7T REER
Nathan Oil LLC 3,4 Nevada, The USA Capital contribution 51% - 51% Exploitation and sale of crude oil
US$750,000
Nathan Ol LLC 3,4 X6 REEMN RAEE BB R & RO
750,000 7T
1 : Disposed of during the year 1 3 FANBHE
2 : Registered under the laws of the PRC as sino-foreign 2 3 REFBERELBTRINGE
equity enterprise b1oES
3 3 Subsidiaries newly incorporated in 2008 3 3 20084 FE 1 A 32 2 3T T & A &
4 : Company not audited by Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong 4 3 REBB L EEEGTMERAT
Kong CPA Limited. BERAREZZ A -

a — RAIFERZERBR A A ° 2008 F K
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20.

21.

22.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Impairment on investments in subsidiaries
The movement in the provision for impairment loss during the

year is as follows:

20.

PHEBASIZIRE #)
(b) RMBATZREEE
AEERELEEZHNT :

The Company
AAT

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FAET
At 1 January »A1H 52,805 52,805
Impairment loss recognised BRI E E R 28,338 —
At 31 December W12H31H 81,143 52,805

Certain subsidiaries under the natural gas and LPG segment
continued operating in losses. Provision for impairment loss was

made based on directors’ annual assessment.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The available-for-sale investments represent investments in
listed shares in Hong Kong and were stated at fair value at
balance sheet date. During the year, an impairment loss of
HK$914,000 (2007: Nil) was recognised in profit or loss included

in other gains and (losses) (note 6).

PLEDGED DEPOSITS

The amount represents fixed deposits pledged for the
estimated future assets retirement costs of the exploitation of
crude oil in the USA as required under the laws and regulations
of the USA (note 28).

21.

22,

ARRREBICAMRYBZETHE
RAEIZBERERR - REBRERT
REESEFZHEMEL -

ot ERE
AHEEREERBERE LTRO 2K
B UTHREEAURAFEAR - FR
914,000/ 7T (20074F © &) 2 & 1B &5 18
EREERER Wit AHMKRE R (B
B)(fz6) -

SECF RN
B R IR DA B RO L 2 AR

ERFAREBERBGEFAREERE
P B 2 T B e AR (Y sE28) -
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23. INVENTORIES 23. B&
The Group
AEE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TH&ET FAT
Spare parts, consumables and others THEMG - EEmREM 51 125
24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24, HibFEWRIE - 2 RFEMF
PREPAYMENTS L]
The Group The Company
& AT
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
F#ERX TAT FHERX THET
Interest receivables & U 1| B, - 219 - 219
Other debtors o Ath jE U BR X 1,026 - 471 =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U BT /B & R 3 E
(note 24(a)) (Bt 5F24(a) ) - — 124,906 124,238
Amount due from a minority equity holder  fEUt — K i B A 7 D &
of a subsidiary (note 39(d)) AR A ARTE
(I 5E39(d)) 1,690 - - -
Loans and receivables B L EWKZE 2,716 219 125,377 124,457
Deposit for acquisition of a motor vehicle BERERZRS - 106 - —
Utility and other deposits KERHMIZE 384 488 - 7
Prepayments B FRIE 416 928 154 612
Prepaid lease payments (note 17) fHEmEMzE (HE17) 187 292 - —
Others H - 144 - —
987 1,958 154 619
125,076

3,703 2177 125,531

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥

Jo
2
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24. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24. HibFEWRIE e RFER
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) I8 ()
All of the other receivables, deposits and prepayments including TEstE MY RIE - 122 RIEMRE (B
amounts due from subsidiaries are expected to be recovered or FEE U B A R RIE ) Al A —F AUk [
recognised as expense within one year. SERBRX -
(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries (a) FEWMBATIRIE
An analysis of the amounts due from subsidiaries is listed below: FEWKIEBARRIBZDMAT

The Company

EAT
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHB T
Due from subsidiaries NG @] 351,571 258,908
Less: allowance for impairment loss B BB E R EE (226,665) (134,670)
124,906 124,238
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free JEWHW B AR FIBEAERAT 22 NA
and repayable on demand. BERKERER-
The movement in the allowance for impairment loss during the FARBEBEEEHB2ZHOT :
year is as follows:
The Company
AAT
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
At 1 January »1H1H 134,670 176,868
Additional allowance BN 93,446 17,285
Reversal of allowance AE {5 B B (1,451) (59,483)
At 31 December M12A831H 226,665 134,670
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24,

25.

26.

OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 24, HihFEWRIE & RTEH
PREPAYMENTS (Continued) FIE#)
(a) Amounts due from subsidiaries (Continued) (a) FEWMEBATIRIE (&)
The allowance for impairment loss of amounts due from FEW I B AR RIE 2 RERIEER T
subsidiaries was made based on an assessment of the future BREWNBARRRBASRE ZTH K
cash flow of the subsidiaries, after taking into consideration of EZEHNBRAAARAKRRBENERER
the forecast of the performance and business development of Z TERITfEH -
the subsidiaries.
NOTE RECEIVABLE 25. FEWEHR
The note receivable represents the unpaid consideration for the JEUWEE LS R m (FERKEI) 2
disposal of Statemoon as set out in note 11. It carries no AARB-ERAHEE ARG S TR
interest and matures on 31 December 2009. 2009512 H31H 2l 5 -
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2. HE2RIBEEEYD
The Group The Company
A&EH ¥ /A
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FT#ERX TAT FHERX THET
Cash and bank balances, denominated in LA T 31| & ¥ &+ E »
R& RIRITHE
— Hong Kong dollars and — BILTRET
United States dollars 6,651 103,864 1,536 103,063
— Renminbi — AREH#E 12,971 7,360 — —
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance REEBEXRZ
sheets RENBEESEEY 19,622 111,224 1,536 103,063
Cash and cash equivalents of HK$12,971,000 equivalent to 12,971,000 7w (H & BN A R %

RMB11,421,000 (2007: HK$7,360,000 equivalent to
RMB6,884,000) were denominated in Renminbi. Renminbi is
not a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out
of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the

PRC Government.

11,421,000C) 2 R e R B 2 FEY
(20074 : 7,360,000 7T #HE R AR
#6,884,0007C) A AR E AR
WHEBRLBEYE HPEEHESA
X BB 2 SN BR il FT AR PR ©

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥
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2
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

27. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

27. HihEFGRIERTEREH

The Group The Company
AEHE ¥ /A
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FTERXT THxrT FER THBET
Other payable and accrued charges H i & 5B &
TEiR & A 6,910 2,530 877 956
Amount due to a minority equity holder of a & it — R Bt 8 & 7] 2> &k
subsidiary (note 39(d)) & H ARIE
(Bt 3%39(d)) - 6,591 - —
Amount due to a controlling shareholder JE 155 478 A% A% B3R R IE
(note 39(d)) (B 5E39(d) ) 8,721 36,348 = —
Amounts due to directors ERE SRR
(note 39(d)) (B 5E39(d) ) 901 1,090 901 1,090
Financial liabilities measured at R AT R 2
amortised cost A& 16,532 46,559 1,778 2,046

All other payables and accruals (including amounts due to

related parties) are expected to be settled within one year or are

repayable on demand.

HILBEREE -

BHMAERMENFALRERER (8
RENBEALRE)BR -—FRBE

28. PROVISION 28. ¥
The Group
&

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH T
Balance at 1 January M1 A1B 2 & 5% - —
Addition (note 7) 320 (B 3%7) 338 —
Balance at 31 December M128318 2 & & 338 =

The provision represents estimated assets retirement obligations

relating to oil and gas properties located in the USA.

ZEERBEEURNXBEZHREER
Bt EERERE -
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29.

30.

TAXATION
(@) Current taxation in the balance sheet
Current taxation in the balance sheet represents provision for

PRC enterprise income tax.

(b) Deferred taxation not recognised

At balance sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses and
deductible temporary differences of HK$13,864,000 (2007:
HK$4,793,000) and HK$10,754,000 (2007: nil) respectively
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of such losses and temporary
differences due to the unpredictablility of future profit streams.
The tax losses will expire in twenty years from the year in which

they were incurred under current tax legislation.

The Group had no significant deferred tax liabilities as at
31 December 2008 and 2007 .

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(@  The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees under
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
The MPF scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF
scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$20,000. Contributions to the plan

vest immediately.

29.

30.

BilE

(@) NEEBBERZEHHBIA
REEBBERZANBHREBEEP B E
P15 T 4 o

(b) KREERZBEEHIE

REEB AEEBTEHAS A A
13,864,000/ 7T (20074F : 4,793,000/ 7T )
110,754,000/ 7T (20074 : £ ) 2 7] &) F
MEEERAINKREREZEUEHEBR
A AR TEETERARBREFBE A
W ERERAEEREREERAET
MEEE -BEREZRBEEL ZE
MEEEREEEECFERH - TF
& fEm °

R20084F 2007F12 A31H » AN&E B I &
BEARIREEZELEHIBEAE -

1§ 5B k78 F

@ AEERBEFTERGUEAESRS
ZlGH - RIREBEBERBIKEIRZ
BZEERTERGMEAE S E
(lEetE) -RESFED
MBYEAEATEZ CBHAE
Ketdl-RERBESHE - EX
REEESBEKEEZEBEK
AZS%IEHEFH - EEAEANK
A LA20,0007% 7T & £ BB o M &t &
e 2 RN REEFE -

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥
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30. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

31.

(Continued)
(o)  Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in

the PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised by
the relevant local government authorities, whereby the
Group is required to make contributions to the Schemes
at a rate ranging from 18% to 22% of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees which are calculated based on a certain

percentage of the basic payroll.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 6 March 2002 for a period of ten years commencing from 6
March 2002 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group,
including directors of any company in the Group, to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The terms and
conditions of the grant are determined by the Board at the time
of grant. In any event, the exercisable period of an option must
not exceed a period of ten years commencing on 6 March
2002. The options give the holder the right to subscribe for
ordinary shares in the Company. A nominal consideration of

HK$1 is payable by the grantee upon acceptance of an option.

30. EERKEA )

31.

) WBEFEBBELEHARIER -
REBLHEBERE KT
G I 2 E B R KA R E 2
TZE8D Bt - AEEEA
BREERBEEBH &N T18%E
2% ZEFEELHHER B
WIS ERSENRARKERE 22
BEARSETEE ZSFERS
RBEEAFEZREEAE D L
& o

BREGHFURBZ/ZRS

AR B R2002F3 A6 B F 4y — I8 B8 AR 42
&1 8] B2002F3A6H & & #10F © &
b AAREFERENBERRAESEE
B (BEAEEEMKEARZES)
REBRE URBARARG - HH
ZERRIGHRESERRERETE -
EEMMBERT  BREZAI TITERT
1S BB B2002F3 A6H AT+ F - BB
BETHAARMNREBRAR L AR -
ERBEREZ ALTRENBRER 2
XNRBAREIVET -
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31.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

st

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( LA 7 Jt 5t &

3. RAGEREUIERHZF2Z2X 5

TRANSACTIONS (continued) (4&)

(a) The terms and conditions of the share options that existed (@) AT A& =2008F K2007F 124
during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 are SIHIEFEGEBRREZERK
as follows and all share options are settled by physical B FMEBREDZEABERER
delivery of shares: RN -

Contractual Number of Contractual

Date of grant Vesting condition Exercise period Exercise price Options Life of options

BB HB R fTERR EHTEE BRERE BRESHEY

Options granted to directors:

RPESZMRE:

— on 2 November 2005 Immediately 3 November 2005 to 2 November 2010 HK$0.035 33,000,000 5 years

— 20055611 A28 3 2005411 A3H £2010F11 A2H 0.035/% 7T 5%

— on 2 November 2006 Immediately 2 November 2006 to 1 November 2011 HK$0.053 80,000,000 5 years

— 12006511 A2H BB 200611 A28 2011511 A1H 0.053/8 7T 5%

— on 22 August 2007 Immediately 22 August 2007 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.375 38,000,000 4.5 years

— R200748A22H S 2007488220 £201243A5H 0.375% 7T 45%F

— on 21 August 2008 Immediately 21 August 2008 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.18 24,000,000 3.5 years

— A200858H21H 3 200848 A21H £201243A5H 0.18% T 354

— on 7 November 2008 Immediately 7 November 2008 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.06 21,000,000 3 years

— 12008511 A7H BB 200811 A7H £201253 A5H 0.0678 7T 3F

Option granted to employees:

BIREZMRE:

— on 2 November 2005 Immediately 3 November 2005 to 2 November 2010 HK$0.035 177,000,000 5 years

— 12005511 A2H BB 200511 A3H £2010511 A2H 0.035/8 7T 5%

— on 2 November 2006 Immediately 2 November 2006 to 1 November 2011 HK$0.053 225,000,000 5 years

— #2006%11A2H S 2006411 A2H 2011511 A1H 0.053% 7T 5%

— on 26 January 2007 Immediately 26 February 2007 to 25 February 2012 HK$0.189 358,000,000 5 years

— 200741 A 268 3 20074F2 A26H £201242 A25H 0.189/ 7T 5%

— on 22 August 2007 Immediately 22 August 2007 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.375 362,000,000 4.5 years

— 12007458220 BB 200748 H22H F201253 A5H 0.375/8 7T 4.5

— on 21 August 2008 Immediately 21 August 2008 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.18 36,000,000 3.5 years

— R2008%F8A21H S 200848 A21H £201243A5H 0187 7T 3.5%F

— on 7 November 2008 Immediately 7 November 2008 to 5 March 2012 HK$0.06 119,000,000 3 years

— 2008511 A7H 3 2008411 A7H £201243A5H 0.06/ 7T 3F

Total share options & R/ #4281

1,473,000,000

w4 Rl EERZER B IR D B o 2008 &F #H



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (M4 # 7T &t & )

31. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 3. BREREELUBRHIZIFZRS

TRANSACTIONS (continued) (#)
(b) The number and weighted exercise prices of share (b) HREZEHE RNETEEWDT

options are as follows:

2008 2007
Weighted Weighted
average Number average  Number
exercise of share exercise of share
price options price options

MHEFY  RBERHE T BERGE
T BB TEE #B
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
BT Fix BT T B

Outstanding at 1 January 1 A1E B RITE 0.250 857,250 0.050 365,000
Granted during the year FERNIZH 0.096 200,000 0.287 758,000
Exercised during the year FRNITE 0.189 (2,000) 0.082 (265,750)
Outstanding at 31 December M12A318 A R1TfE 0.221 1,055,250 0.250 857,250
Exercisable at 31 December M12A318 7] F17{E 0.221 1,055,250 0.250 857,250

FRBTEBRERTEE R ZNE
15 IR (B %0.2907% 7T (20074F © 0.41978
JT) e

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of the
share options during the year was HK$0.290 (2007: HK$0.419).

P2008F12831H » M AR (TFE B IE 2
17 £ {8 » Bl A0.035% T * 0.053/%8 It

The options outstanding at 31 December 2008 had exercise
prices of HK$0.035, HK$0.053, HK$0.189, HK$0.375, HK$0.18

—

N — paywi] sbuipjoH ABiau3 sisausn e 8007 Hoday |enuuy

and HK$0.06 (2007: HK$0.035, HK$0.053, HK$0.189 and
HK$0.375) respectively and a weighted average remaining

contractual life of 3.1 years (2007: 4.1 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted are measured with reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair values of the services
received is measured based on the Black-Scholes option pricing

model. Life of the option is incorporated into the model.

0.1897% 7T * 0.375% 7T * 0.18%% 7T %0.06
75 7 (20074F : 0.0357% 7T * 0.0537% T *
0.1897% 7T }0.375/4 7t ) + M I 4 F 5 %
TEHFHAIAF (20074F : 41F ) o

(c) FEREZAFERRR
BRREEREMESRE 2 AFE
D2EmBRLBEREZ ATFEFE M
BEERHE 2R FEIDRIESEEHERE
FIERAGG ZEACKBEREZF
HtEER -
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31. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)
Fair value of share options and assumptions

Date of grant

R B M

3. RAGEREUIERHZF2Z2X 5

(&)
(c) BREZAFERRR (&)

BREZ N FERER

7 November 21 August 22 August 26 January

2008 2008 2007 2007

2008<E 2008<E 2007 2007 4F
117H 8H21H 8H22H 1826H

Fair value at measurement date
NEFFERBZATE
Share price
B (8
Exercise price
1TfEE
Expected volatility
e
Expected life
TEHAF HA
Expected dividends
T HA AR B
Risk-free interest rate (based on the yields to maturity of Hong
Kong Exchange Fund Note)
ERERANX (REBIEECTRIPURAEXRGE

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of the
share options), adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Expected
dividends are based on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect the fair

value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition. This
condition has not been taken into account in the grant date fair
value measurement of the services received. There were no

market conditions associated with the share option granted.

HK$0.014  HK0.032 HK$0.035  HK$0.011
0.014# 35T 0.032# 5T 0.035% T 0.011%8 7T
HK$0.06  HK$0.18 HK$0.375  HK$0.189
0.06#JT 0.18%JT 0.375%7C 0.189% 7T
HK$0.18  HK$0.18 HK$0.375  HK$0.189
0.18#Jt 0.18#JT 0.3758 7T 0.1897% T

58.06% 50.73% 56% 33.7%
1 year 1 year 0.17 year 0.16 year
14 14 0174 0.16%F
0% 0% 0% 0%
0.48% 1.63% 4% 3.725%

TR HA R 0E T LA SE R R A B (IR B IR
RZMEFARGFEHAE) LR
ARAABEMZEARARR IS Z I EF
HAE-FHRENEELRE BK
e TBRBRR 2B AIEH RV EME
BREAZE -

BRI R RF R - ZRGMFLR
SRAMESRERELBEHRZAFE-
R EREEm IR L EREE -

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥

su
2
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31.

32.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(Continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions (Continued)

The Group recognised total expenses of HK$3,877,000 (2007:

HK$17,627,000) (note 32(b)) related to equity-settled payment

transactions during the year.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(@) Share capital
() Authorised and issued share capital

3. BREGHEUBEKZFZ2XS
(&)
(c) BEREZAFERRIR &)
BREZ N FEREKER (E)
REAN AEEBEIBRALEE TR
R 5 2 425 23,877,000/ 7T (20074 :
17,627,000/ 7T ) (M 7E32(b) ) °
32. XK fHE
(@) B’=&F
0 EEREZFTRAL
The Group and the Company
AEERELT
2008 2007
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
B EE &3E BRHHEE ok}
’000 HK$’000 '000 HK$'000
T FH#T T & FA T

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each F IR EE0.018 T
il

Ordinary shares, issued and BETIREAR
fully paid: ERAR

At 1 January M1 A18

Shares issued under the placing (i) % B & 31T A% 10 (iii)

Shares issued under share BB BB 1T
option scheme (i) F% 1 (ii)

At 31 December M12H31H

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally regard to the

Company’s residual assets.

10,000,000 100,000 10,000,000 100,000

4,224,884 42,249 3,585,134 35,851
_ — 374,000 3,740
2,000 20 265,750 2,658

4,226,884 42,269 4,224,884 42,249

EBRFEBEABRBRTEEIR
ZBRE - YHEARABRERRE £
BRAE-—ERER-MALE
BHARRZHTEEZFARSE

3 -
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Bt 5 3R 3R B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(a)

Share capital (Continued)

(i) Shares issued under share option scheme

During 2008, options were exercised to subscribe for
2,000,000 (2007: 265,750,000) ordinary shares in the
Company at a consideration of HK$378,000 (2007:
HK$21,717,000) of which approximately HK$20,000
(2007: HK$2,658,000) was credited to share capital and
the balance of approximately HK$358,000 (2007:
HK$19,059,000) was credited to the share premium
account. HK$33,000 (2007: HK$3,499,000) has been
transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with accounting policy

set out in note 3(q)(ii).

(i) Shares issued under the placing

On 11 February 2007, Hong Chang China Limited
(“HCC”), a controlling shareholder and a company wholly
owned by Hong Chang Group Limited which is owned by
Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a director of the Company, entered
into a placing agreement and a subscription agreement
with placing agents and the Company respectively in
relation to (i) the placing by HCC at a price of HK$0.325
per share of an aggregate of 374,000,000 then existing
ordinary shares of the Company held by HCC to the
placees through the placing agents and (ii) the
subscription by HCC at a price of HK$0.325 per share of
an aggregate of 374,000,000 new ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each to be issued by the Company after the
placing was completed. The net proceeds from the
subscription of HK$118,514,000 were to be utilised for
general working capital and/or future investments in
energy sector and up-steam oil and gas projects of the

Group.

32. BEXREE 7

(a)

B& (&)

(i)  HBRESZETRG
FA20084F - f# BX #E B & 17 £ B
7 B 7 2 §)2,000,0008% (20074 :
265,750,0008% ) & @& &K K B &
378,0007% 7T (20074F : 21,717,000/
Jt) » H & #920,000% T (20074 :
2,658,000 7T, ) 5t AR AN - 882 T 4Y
358,000/ 7T (20074F : 19,059,000/
TO)EF ARG % B AR o AR R M &
3(0)(i) T &k 2 & 5T B K - 33,0007 7T
(20074 : 3,499,000/ 7T ) B A & I%
RERBREBRERMEER

(i) HEEFETRG
R2007F2A11H B EFRRE AR
ARl ([BEFRE D(BERRKRE R
HEEEBARAA (BARA
EEMER LT HEB)2ERER
AN R BEREEREREARD
RAIBUATEIBII Y — S Hh=
E—HOREHZE: (BEFRHE
B s N B IR S R0.3257 T 2 B
BRAARALEEEREBETRH
FRAEZARABRAEEBRE H#
374,000,0000% © (i) & = Bl A
T RO3BE T ZERREE &
374,000,0008% 7~ A 7] i 7 BL & 78
X 1% 317 2 § R E E0.0178 T 57
TAR- REMSREFEAR
118,514,000 T AR A K E 2
REEE SRR EREEIR
TEREFBEREBE ZEKRE -

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥

su
2

Bl % B2 R ¥

127



—— paywi] sbuipjoy ABiaug sisausan e 8007 Hoday |enuuy

128

Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) ( LA 7 Jt 5t &

32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

32. EXRGEE )

(b) The Company (b) EAT
Share
Share Share Contributed option Accumulated
capital  premium surplus reserve losses Total
R
KBx BHEE SRS fik & EHY ] o
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt & FHET FTHT FHET FTHT FTHT FHET
At 1 January 2007 200741 A18 35,851 227,057 81,043 4,461 (270,103) 78,309
Shares issued under the placing RS ETRG 32(a)(iii) 3,740 114,774 — — — 118,514
Shares issued under share option scheme & B A% i &1 213 17 I 7 32(a)ii) 2,658 22,558 — (3,499) — 21,7117
Equity settled share-based transactions BALEUNBRALNT %5 — — — 17,627 — 17,627
Profit for the year N E R F - — — — 18,266 18,266
At 31 December 2007 and #2007 12A318 &

1 January 2008 200851 A1H 42,249 364,389 81,043 18,589 (251,837) 254,433
Shares issued under share option scheme 12 IR i€ 21 3 /7 0k 15 32(a)(ii) 20 391 = (33) = 378
Equity settled share-based transactions BARLLNBRERNT RS — — — 3,877 — 3,877
Loss for the year AEEER = = = = (133,395) (133,395)
At 31 December 2008 1200845128318 42,269 364,780 81,043 22,433 (385,232) 125,293

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) HEHEMEERAR

(i) Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue

of shares at a price in excess of their par value per share

and is not distributable but may be applied in paying up

unissued shares of the Company to be issued to the

shareholders of the Company as fully paid bonus shares

or in providing for the premiums payable on repurchase of

shares.

O  REE
P 0 % (B 45 A i) & IR E B
BRZFITROMEEZTADIK
wE BRI RESBARRFRE
SBRABAARBKRRETLZ
ARBETROIMERRBR KD Z

e (E -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

32. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(i) Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose when the
Company issued shares in exchange for the shares of
subsidiaries being acquired, and represents the difference
between the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued and the value of net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make distributions

out of contributed surplus if:

— it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay

its liabilities as they become due; or

—  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its

issued share capital and share premium account.

(i) Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to employees of the Company recognised in
accordance with accounting policy adopted for share-

based payments in note 3(q)(ii).

(iv)  Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside Hong Kong which are
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy as set

out in note 3(r).

(v)  Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2008, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity holders of the Company
was nil (2007: nil).

32. EXRGEE )

(c)

REMERRAR (&)

@)  BAEE
RRFZEMEERIKE AR A
TR ARBABANBREZ
By ZBHBEERARALC#
TROEESRMBANEBREE
EFEzHzZEZR -REBRZE
—NN—FRBE (BEFT) &
MBHATEYIKTRE - AW
HBEETIBER ARARTAE
NS A= N EOP- R (e
7K

—  RNEHERNAEELE
BIHEE X

— BHEEZAZREEERN
BE BEITERAREMD S
BB

(i) BREFE
BRERBREAAQAEER
M2 BERKEEBE ZHARITE
BREZAFTE SREME
3(a)(ii) Bt LA B 1 32 5 2 5K I8 P 5% 4
ST BRERAR -

(v) B
ELRGBEEERRBRETENINE
B2 mRMEIEZTAINE
ZR - NIRRBHESNAE Z &5t
BUR Ba 38 ©

V) DR E
M2008F 128318 + AN A & W &
AP RTREFEAZ EHESE
(20074 : /&) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

33. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 33. ZEBRERERME
STATEMENT

(a) Disposal of a subsidiary during the year ended (a) & E2008F12A31HILLEER
31 December 2008 HE—REKEBAT
On 4 November 2008, the Group entered into an agreement MR2008F11 848  AEEHE T F =
with National Top Holdings Limited (“NTH”), an independent FRESEEER AR (BREEE])FT
third party, to dispose of the entired equity shares of Statemoon, Vg ARSEBLEAREE 2B
a subsidiary of the Group to NTH for a consideration of AEE R zE2BRMND KE A
HK$15,000,000. Statemoon is engaged in the operations of 15,000,000/8 7T - B m it ERARE &
natural gas pipeline network. The transaction was completed on P L E T - IR 52008124
18 December 2008. The disposal was disclosed as 18E K - ZHEHE A FIAE 2
discontinued operations set out in note 11. ERIEREET -
Details of cash flow and the net assets of Statemoon as at MR EKBBcREREREEF
completion date are as follows: BEFFBEWT :
2008
HK$’000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) W% - BWER&E (FE16) 93,458
Amounts due from related parties FE W B8 3 A 1 FIB 3,586
Amount due from a shareholder FE W AR 3R SRR 5,487
Net assets disposed of FTHEEEFE 102,531
Loss on disposal of Statemoon (note 11) HERR2EE (1) (87,531)
Total consideration BB 15,000
Satisfied by: SR
Cash consideration received BHIR e RE 1,500
Note receivable (note 25) FE W = 5 (Bt 5E25) 13,500

Net cash inflow in respect of the disposal of a subsidiary: BERALEENBARZIRES R AFEE
Cash consideration received BUIRERE 1,500
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Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (A i 7T &t & )

33. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (Continued)

(@) Disposal of subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2008 (Continued)

The subsidiary disposed of contributed HK$2,674,000 to the

Group’s turnover and a loss of HK$ 3,898,000 during the year.

The impact of Statemoon on the Group’s results and cash flows

is set out in note 11.

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2007
On 11 September 2007, the Group and Surplus Way
Investments Limited (“SWI”) entered into an agreement and
disposed of two subsidiaries, namely Bamber Resources
Limited (“Bamber”) and Xinjiang Xingmei Oil-Pipeline Co., Ltd.
(collectively “Bamber Group”), which were engaged in the
operations of crude oil transportation, storage and unloading
services, to SWI for a cash consideration of HK$1. The
transaction was completed on 24 October 2007. The disposal
was disclosed as discontinued operations set out in note 11.
SWI is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Chang Group
Limited, which is a controlling shareholder of the Company and
a company controlled by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a director of the
Company. On disposal, Bamber waived the obligation of the
Group to repay an amount of approximately HK$7,762,000 due

from the Group to Bamber.

3. ZFEHERERME =)

(@) & ZE2008F12HA31HILFEE RN

HEMBAT (&)
FANEENBRARATEEEXEST
[8h2,674,000/% 7T - I 2 24 fE5 53,898,000
BT e

BREAKBEXENREREZYE
i ARE

(b) EEZFE2007F12A31HILFEE R
HEMBAT

200759 A11H - AREBEAFHKE
BERAF ([BEKRE DL — D -
WAREREIBETRBHEZELEM
XWBAR G BNEDERERAAF ([E
N ERFEBEXABREEERAA (&
BIEDEE])  ZMRQANERAS
Bl RERHAREER REXS
F2007F 10248 Bk c Z L EH T A
MIGEIFTE Z BRI E X - BEIR
BEREESEERARAZEANBA
Al -MBESEBRARIABRARZE
BRIRRRB—FKBEARRAEFME R
ZrHEHZ AR -REER EPHRE
AEBERASEENESD 2 RELD
7,762,000/ 7T 2 B F ©

iz B PR 2 7 ¢ 2008 F ¥

T
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33. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 33. ZEBRERERME #)

STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended (b) BE2007F12A31BLLEER
31 December 2007 (Continued) HEMBAT (&)
Details of cash flow and net liabilities of the Bamber Group were EDEECERERERBEFEFS
as follows: i N
2007
HK$’000
FE T
Property, plant and equipment (note 16) W BER&E (HE16) 409,499
Prepaid lease payments (note 17) METE KB (E17) 485
Inventories T8 368
Trade and other receivables JE WS BR 3 K EL b JE Uk SR IE 30,376
Amount due from the Group JE WS &5 B SR IE 38,812
Cash at banks and on hand RITRFHERE 2,223
Trade and other payables F& {-F BR 30 K E b JE {5 5RIE (74,413)
Bank loans IRITE (463,814)
Net liabilities disposed of Frt & B & FE (56,464)
Release of exchange reserve bE R (2,683)
(569,147)
Gain on disposal of the Bamber Group (note 11) HEZEZE R 2 e (FreE11) 66,909
Waiver of amount due to the Bamber Group NP EMNEDEBRRIA (7,762)
Total consideration BRE =
Satisfied by: SN
Cash consideration received BEURRERE =
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(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

33.

34.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (Continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended

33. ZEBRERERME #)

(b) #HZE2007FE12H31HILEEER

31 December 2007 (Continued) HEMBAST (&)
2007
HK$'000
FET
Net cash outflow in respect of the disposal of ERALERBARZ

subsidiaries: W& FRE
Cash consideration HERE =
Less: Cash at banks and on hand of subsidiaries BT EWB AR ZR1T

disposed of NFBERE (2,223)

(2,223)

The subsidiaries disposed of during that year had a loss from

operations of HK$214,000 up to the date of disposal.

SIGNIFICANT NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(@  During the year, the Group disposed of a subsidiary for a
consideration of HK$15,000,000, of which
HK$13,500,000 is to be settled by a promissory note.

Details are set out in note 11.

(b)  During the year, the Group disposed of property, plant
and equipment with a carrying value of HK$12,521,000 to
a minority equity holder of a subsidiary for a consideration
of HK$14,542,000, of which HK$11,071,000 was settled
by offsetting the amount due to the minority equity holder

of a subsidiary.

ZERNBEZLEAH THERERQ A
B A& & E18214,00008 7T °

34. EXHFRERX D
(a) %79 75 [ LA 4 (815,000,000

THE BB QA EF
13,500,000/% 7T bA & H Z 4R 5 (8 o
BRAFIBHRME -

() FRA - AEBE K E4,542,000%8
TR—BHBARZ —&LHRK
EFE ALEREEA12,521,000
BLZ2WE BERZH HH
11,071,000/ 7T & & K 84 F& < B
BRARLHREREARIBBE -
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35. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 35. EXEHE

—
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The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to

finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the capital structure of the
Group consists of net debts, which includes other payables and
accruals, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued

share capital and reserves.

The directors review the capital structure regularly. As part of
this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment of dividends, new
share issue as well as the issue of new debt or the repayment of

existing debts.

$E@ BEAZEZBEDRER

EEEOE-+-PEoE - - SR
ﬁﬁLEH 2 7K B e 2 B R AR
BEBARESAERAZHBE  #E
AR R B35 B 3R K W B A &= AH B A
i KA 55

AEEEBEEHNHEARERER
ARERE tMERSEEXFERT
ARELEZEERREFERFENR
AR R 2 8F B R AR PR 2 VRIS T 1 -
THEEERBEZEHENRENRE

i -
EMHTRENZERT AREZE
ARBREFES HPaENRRS

EREEBYRARABRERB AR

hE (BRERTRARER) ZH
N RERERER -

ESTHHEARBETR RFT 2
THEZ-REFHEARARETEE
AzHBARRETEZR RBEEF 2R
FOAKEBRBEBXNRE  HARE
T BOHEEBHNEERGER &
%%§$ SRR -
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35.

36.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)
The net debts-to-equity ratio at 31 December 2008 and 2007

was as follows:

35.

EAXAEHE #)
20084 K2007%12 A31H 2 &% F1E

S RN

The Group
A %HE
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT
Total debts: other payables and accruals BERRE  Ha g HRIE
kiEiRE R 16,532 46,559
Less: Cash and cash equivalents R RREEEY (19,622) (111,224)
(Excess of cash and cash equivalents RekReEEYBE
over debts) BI5=%58) (3,090) (64,665)

Equity = 132,429 260,849
Net debts-to-equity ratio B FEE =X N/AFEH  NATER

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to

externally imposed capital requirements.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. These risks
are limited by the Group’s financial management policies and

practices described below.

(@) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer
or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises primarily from the Group’s

loans and receivables and cash with banks.

36.

NN D G = BN N =1
ERZERNREMBR -

B 75 B B 3

EE -RBES  FIXERINER RSN
ZX%IZE%%%’% BRESL - ZER
B EBANEBMHEERERERS
RT3 G AR ©

m FEE%
RIEMEPIEeRITARSH
az@ﬁ HEEMBRAEE YT
EECER EERREZEREXEE
ZERRERRIERBRITRSE °
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

(i)  Loans and receivables

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to loans
and receivables. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on

an ongoing basis.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by
the carrying amount of each financial asset, in the balance
sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. The
Group does not provide any guarantees which would

expose the Group to credit risk.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group had a
certain concentration of credit risk as 65% (2007: nil) of
total loans and receivables was from a single debtor.

However, the amount was fully recovered subsequently.

(i) Cash with banks

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by placing
cash and deposits with financial institutions that meet the
established credit rating or other criteria. Given these high
credit ratings, management does not expect any

counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Group had a
certain concentration of credit risk as 59% (2007: 71%) of
total cash and cash equivalents were deposited at one

financial institution in the PRC with high credit ratings.

36. MBREBER &)

(a)

EERE (&)

() EXREHHE
AEBZEERBREEREERN
REWRIB EEEEREZE
ERX UTERBEEMEARZ
ZEEERR -

AR CERAEERRASEESR
BEREBVBEEZREERE
ERBREEG AEELLEE
HEMER BEAEEAZE
R -

20084 K2007412H31H « R
65% (20074 : &) 2 B 3 & & W
RIEBBEHREE—BEBHA
hAEEmHE T EEEFRERR -
Hi ZeBE28KE -

(i) RITHZ
AEBEGFRHIR G R B 5%
BUAREREBERR - 250 i
BHEINZRAUGEET R HA
BRE ERNZEUBRIBESE
EdAEs EEERHIET
MRBHTEEBITHERS -

FA20084F 2007 12A31H @ A&

BEETEESTRR - HR59%

(20075 : T1% )z R e KRB & F

BYBBIERATPE —RAR
B EETR VM BRER -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 36. HHEBEERE @)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet
its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will
always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the

Group’s reputation.

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for
their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval by the Company’s
board when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily
realisable marketable securities and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

(c) Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant long term interest-bearing
assets and liabilities, the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in market

interest rate.

(d) Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
recognised assets and liabilities that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. At 31 December 2008 and 2007, no related

hedges were made by the Group.

In respect of other receivables and payables held in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operations to which
they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to
an acceptable level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at

spot rates where necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(b) WENE 2 E S

RBEERB D AEBMRENRYBE
TRHEETERET 2 AR - AEHE
EERDEL I AREERRAH
RARDESENIBARE S4AEH
BEARETHESZEBRBEZE -

AEFEETENEEERBTRER
TEE %ﬁ%%% MR E R 8
ELREERRSHT R EHEESR
BEBALTEETZRERBEALAR
RAEEeHE - AEEZHRRREHNE
RERPESHFLLEETETREER
RO NEREGREAZREHER
BERAZREERS  URETEM
BHBZEERERARNEESR
ERRDESHFE °

(c) FI3=JE b
HRAEESYEBEARAFREER
BE BHit AREZBRAREERS
MEABIEXMEMNEXEGH 2ZE

(d EEERE

AEREAZERRRBREERABNE
BEBZNEEEUNIIZERFEZ
EREENKEE - R2008F K%20074F
12A318 » NE BN EIE L AR S -

RABAEB 2T AN ZEE
FBEZHMBEYRIBEREMNKE K&
BV ERIZBEAEXE & INE B
RAE BRI - DA R AR R B B B AT
2K o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

36. MBREBER &)

Currency risk (Continued) (d E%EREE)
(i)  Exposure to currency risk () FiRZEZEEEE
The following table details the Group’s exposure at the TREINAEBNSEEHRER
balance sheet date to currency risk arising from NEBERZEEBUINZE
recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency BT EZEEREBBEMAX ZE
other than the functional currency of the entity to which MERFE MRESMBEEE
they relate. The sensitivity analysis includes balances SNPGRS =5 =
between Group companies where the denomination of ThLAE 75 318 77 2 T 88 & #& DA S
the balances is in a currency other than the functional ZEHEEEE -
currencies of the lender or the borrower.
The Group &
2008 2007
United United
Australian States Australian States
Dollars Dollars Renminbi Dollars Dollars  Renminbi
R ES ARE RIT X AR%K
’000 ’000 '000 '000 '000 '000
F TR F® Fx Fr Tx
Trade and other receivables JE Uk BR 7k &% E b jE U mR IR - - 483 - — —
Note receivables* i ESo 1,943 - - — — —
Cash and cash equivalents BehREEEY - 3 12 = = 4,359
Amount due from group companies FE U & B A 7 RE - 11,946 11,349 - — —
Trade and other payables JE AN BR 0 B L At FB T RIE = - (42) - 2 -
Amount due to a B 5% 422 AR AR SRR OE
controlling shareholder - - (3,188) — — —
Overall net exposure BEREKRFE 1,943 11,949 8,614 — 2 4,359

* Included in investment in a jointly controlled entity

* BMARKFAREAERRZERE -
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

36. MBREBER &)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) EERMEZE)
(i)  Sensitivity analysis (i) ®WEEDH
The following table indicates the approximate change in TRETNEEBH RSB REK
the Group’s loss after taxation (and accumulated losses) BAR 2 INERE KA fE 2 A 12
and other components of consolidated equity in response PEENASBRHEEER (&
to reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange ZEtER)UREE R HMAE
rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the BE D 2 BB B) o BLRE B AT
balance sheet date. The sensitivity analysis includes BIEEBARRMRZ L% MiZ
balances between Group companies where the EEBRTNERFREHRZES
denomination of the balances is in a currency other than PO 2 EEESTE o B T E AR
the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. A BMEEZEXRY  ATEHRK
positive number below indicates an increase in loss and TEEREMEREM - 28T
other equity where the HKD strengthens against the BEBER ZE XK AR 6
relevant currency. For a weakening of the HKD against the HEBREMEREKESBER
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite BHERZFE AT
impact on the loss and other equity, and the balances ==
below would be negative.
The Group KEEH
2008 2007
Increase/ ~ Effect on loss Effect on loss
(decrease) in  after taxation Effect on Increase/  after taxation Effect on
foreign and other  (decrease) in and other
exchange  accumulated  components foreign  accumulated  components
rates losses of equity exchange rates losses of equity
HEHE HEDHM ke HEREMD
IPEER BiER Rt BRIz SNEER  FERZRS ARBAZ
E#/(FRE) BEZVE BE A/ (TR) EBzyE v&
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$000  HK$000
FiET FiERT FTET TET
Renminbi AR 3% 362 = 5% 163 =
Australian dollars RT 10% 1,056 - N/A TER N/A NER  NA TER

%4 RlFTEERZR B IR D B o 2008 &F #H
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Currency risk (Continued)

(i)  Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The Group (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to each of
the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for the
financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain

constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next annual balance sheet date.
In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States
dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States dollar against
other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in
the above table represent an aggregation of the effects on
each of the Group entities’ loss after taxation and equity
measured in the respective functional currencies,
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate
ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation purposes.

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

Commodity price risk

The Group engages in petroleum-related activities. The oil

market is affected by global and regional demands and supplies.

Prices of onshore crude oil are determined with reference to the

prices of crude oil on the international markets. A decline in the

prices of crude oil and refined products could adversely affect

the Group’s financial position. The Group historically has not

used commodity derivative instruments to hedge against

potential price fluctuations of crude oil as the Group’s exposure

to fluctuation in crude oil price is insignificant in 2008 and 2007 .

36. MBREIBER &)

(d) E¥EE )

(i) SEESH (E)

&5 (&)

BRI 2 7 T R R M E [ R 2 &
PIREERACRERCHARH
ETRERERAZAGTEZSR
TAmPE R 2EERAR  MMAA
HZEHR(LERMNEX)RE T

itz BEiEERBHAE T —
FEAERALHMZINERE K]
A= = e R | AT =
BEBTRETLZHEEEXRTE
REEZTHBEMEE 2 EME
BEHrEATE  LRITZ
IMEREBEHAEBEETSES
RENEEBFEVRLEERZ
BITEXRERBTUHRZS 2
AreBRBEEERERIZEE
B o Z o M TR BE2007F MR 2
EAEETT

(e) ™ MmIEHERE

AEBEEEEAHEREZER - MR
BRERRkRERBRZEZE KL
RomERT2REE TS 2 RHER
HERE - R RIEREMER TR LY
REBPHBARRAERTHNEE - AN
£ B 120084 }20074F P A X 2 IR i (B

RKB AL FERE  MARBBEL KK
REmTETAYHRRKEEEBRK
) o
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36.

37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 36.

(f) Fair values

The fair values of all financial assets and liabilities are not

materially different from their carrying amounts.

Fair value has been determined either by reference to the market

value at the balance sheet date or by discounting the relevant

MBEREE @)

H 2FE
MAMBGEERABZAFERRK
EEZMLSEERER -

ATEEBLEEEA 2 miE KA
BUTAZEAFEHIEERERE

cash flows using current interest rates for similar instruments. ETFRZAAERE -
COMMITMENTS 37. ki
(a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2008 @ 20087 K2007F12H318 @ I K

and 2007 not provided for in the financial statements of

the Group were as follows:

EREEYERENERERS
KB MG AFET ¢

The Group
¥ 35
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER T
Contracted for BEET4
— acquisition of motor vehicles —BBEA = 576
— capital contribution in a subsidiary — HWB AR ZBRAEE - 5,078
— 5,654
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRTL
— operation of an oil exploitation project — W MR FEREIER - 126,149
— 126,149
Total ekl - 131,808

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥

su
2

B — AFRRS
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37.

38.

COMMITMENTS (Continued) 37. &iE =)

(o) At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the total future minimum (b)  FA2008%F K2007F12H318 * 1 7]
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases BiEKEHE s AR RERER
were payable as follows: THMERMT -

The Group
AEHE
2008 2007
Within 1 year 1FE K 2,415 2,666
After 1 year but within 5 years 1 & B5F 85 1,941
2,500 4,607

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of properties AEEABRELEHEREZIEYME

held under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial ZHEMBEA—RME  ZEHEZTH

period of one to two years without an extension option. None of HRE N FA1Z=2F WEEHEEE - FT
the leases includes contingent rentals. FHEMEaEERS -

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 38. WHEEE

Environmental liabilities

The Group has oil exploitation operation in the United States of
America (the “USA”). The USA has adopted environmental laws
and regulations that affect the operation of the oil industry. The
outcome of environmental liabilities under proposed or future
environmental legislation cannot reasonably be estimated at
present, and could be material. Under existing legislation,
however, management believes that there are no probable
liabilities that will have a material adverse effect on the financial

position of the Group.

FRRKRZAER
AEEREEE L MRFARES - XE
EETRERARERER & FAERR
MEBIABRTEZRE - BEPHR
KZBRRILEAMSIBZERRRLZA
BEEATMEEE B G BETAE
ReAM VRERBEILE EEER
#5007 FE T fR] AT BE S AN &R B B A5 IR
NELTERBEEFEZRE -
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

The directors consider that the following are related parties of
the Group in the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007:

Name of party
FHEALTZHE

30. EXFAEANLRS

H £2008%F N2007F12A31BH IEFER -
BERE AEBZBEBALTHT

Relationship with the Group
HEAREZEHE

Hong Chang Group Limited
(“Hong Chang Group”)
HEEBBRAR ([BEKE ]

Hong Chang China Limited (“HCC”)
WERBRARAR ([BEFRE])

ERETRR AR
EREHIRR AR

Surplus Way Investments Limited (“SWI”)

BRREBRAR (BRERKRE ]

Controlling shareholder of the Company, which is a company
controlled by Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a director of the Company
RRFZ R - B AR 7 & SR E & 2 15

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Chang Group
BEEBCZE2ENE LA

Minority equity holder of a subsidiary
—EXMBRARIZ DBRERE A

A wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Chang Group
BEEEZ2ENBARA

(a)

Recurring transactions

(i)  Pipeline leasing income

During the year, the Group leased out the natural gas
pipeline under operating leases to EBE IR A A,
from which the Group received pipeline leasing income of
HK$2,674,000 (2007: HK$1,091,000) from EERR$NTTIHAR
‘A a]. The natural gas pipeline network was disposed of
during the year (note 11).

(a)

HEMRXS

() EEHEZHA

RAEE  AEBRBLSEHE -
BAAREBEERTFTERITMRER
RE AEBEERYTHRIA
A Y B % & 1 & Y A2,674,000/8
7¢ (20074F : 1,091,000/ JT)° K
AREEMBERFANLE (W
11) ©

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥

su
2
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a)

Recurring transactions (Continued)

(i) Rental

During the year, the Group received rental income of
HK$407,000 (2007: Nil) from a related company. The
spouse of Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a director of the Company,

is a director of that related company.

The directors are of the opinion that the above related party

transactions, excluding item (i) above, were conducted on

normal commercial terms and in the ordinary course of

business.

(b)

Non-recurring transactions

(i) Disposal of property, plant and equipment
During the year, the Group disposed of property, plant
and equipment to ERETHAR A R with carrying value
of HK$12,521,000 (2007: HK$252,000). The disposal
resulted in a gain of HK$1,991,000 (2007: nil).

(i)  Indemnity

Ms. Xing Xiao Jing, a controlling shareholder and a
director of the Company during the year, has given
undertakings to indemnify the Group in connection with all
losses the Group may incur relating to the alleged loans
and alleged interest thereon relating to a subsidiary, which

was disposed of in 2007, for whatever reasons.

The directors are of the opinion that the above non-recurring

related party transactions, excluding items (i) above, were

conducted on normal commercial terms and in the ordinary

course of business.

30. EXFAEANLRS (&)

(@) KEEMXSE)
(i) #Hz
REAFEE AEBR-—HHEER
7] Uk BR A € Y2 A 407,0007%8 7T.(2007
F:\E) - ARAEEMERL T
ZEBAZAERRIZES -

EEZRR LABBEBALTXRFZROING
REFEKEBEPREETBRGRE

-
o

-
[

(b) FEEMRXS
() HEYE BERRHE
REAFE AEBREARME
12,521,000/ 7T (20074F : 252,00078
TIEEME BERXETER
PmMARAAF - ZEEF R K=
1,991,000/ 7t (20074F : &) °

(i) & RE
EA¢W RARIZERRRRES
Em L LA EmENEM

RE - A& B E—FE 8 AR
(BER2007F ) BB EERE
KR E P S 2 R B E R
B He@EASEMEARZ
FIR=RiE N

EERE LNELCEFHBEALRS
(EXZEMERIN N B E XK RAIES
BIE S S E G ETT ©
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 39. EXFAEANLR S @)
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) EEEHASNE
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, AREBTEEEABMNS (BT
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed FiEBEsZEMARREE X Z2HE
in note 9 and all of the highest paid employees as disclosed in FH 10O BEZEREE RS FE
note 10, is as follows: BYNZHRE)WT :
2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FE T
Short-term employee benefits R HE B R T 6,011 4,940
Post-employment benefits B B 12 1 A 62 36
Equity compensation benefits 1 75 51 B AR 7 2,745 1,485
8,818 6,461
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 7(b)). B 2FE A AT TRA IR (B
7(b)) °
(d) Financing arrangements (d) mE=HE
The Group The Company

Amounts due (from)/ Amounts due to

to related parties related parties

¥: -4
(FEWr )  FE 1 AAT
FEANLTRIE FEFTREANLTRIE
As at 31 December As at 31 December
®12A318 ®12A31H
2008 2007 2008 2007
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT THERT FAT
Amount due (from)/to a minority (YY) /e — R B A A
equity holder of a subsidiary VEIRERB A KA (1,690) 6,591 - —
Amount due to a controlling shareholder JE A<F 422 AR % BR 0 IE 8,721 36,348 = -
Amounts due to directors [ENEEHIE 901 1,090 901 1,090
7,932 901 1,090

44,029

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥

T
e

» — AR
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39. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(d) Financing arrangements (Continued)
The outstanding balances with these related parties are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The
amounts due (from)/to related parties are included in “other
receivables, deposits and prepayments” and “other payables

and accruals” (note 24 and 27).

40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2008 and 2007

may be categorised as follows:

39.

40.

EXHEEALRS &)

(d) BU&E=H &)
HZEREATZHAEEERAE
B 2B RRERKEE - (BR), &
B8 A T FRIE Ty A A THE fib & M 3K
B Re RTEMNKE]IRHEMEFT R
BRERE A (24 %274 -

MEBEEERMBEBZYE
B=E

20084 R2007F 12 A31A R 7 N &
B EEERMEAEZEEED B
R

2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T F& T
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables (including cash and bank &S R EKZIE (B1FER &
balances) KERIT#E R ) 40,238 114,580
Available-for-sale financial assets A E S EE 1,431 —
Financial liabilities MBaE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost IR A ECHBEAR 16,532 46,559
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41. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(@)

On January 2009, the Group entered into an agreement
with Ms. Li Xu Hong, vendor, to purchase a 100% equity
interest of Toppace Limited, (@ company incorporated in
Hong Kong and indirectly owns 90% equity interest in a
PRC subsidiary, which has a right to participate in an oil
exploitation project in Shaanxi Province, the PRC) for a
total consideration of HK$59,900,000. The acquisition
constituted a disclosable transaction under the Listing
Rules and the details are set out in the Company’s

announcement dated 13 January 2009.

On 23 February 2009, the Group entered into an
agreement with Great Richy Group Limited (“Great
Richy”), an independent third party, to acquire 30% of the
registered capital of Datong Fugiao Waste Incineration
Electricity Limited (KFE BRI EZEEHR A7) for a
consideration of HK$170,000,000 to be settled by
allotting and issuing 377,971,800 shares at the issued
price of HK$0.45 per share to Great Richy upon
completion. The acquisition constituted a major
transaction under the Listing Rules. Details are set out in

the Company’s announcement dated 20 February 2009.

42. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the discontinued operations, certain comparative

figures have been adjusted or re-classified to conform with

changes in disclosures in the current year.

4. FEBHEEH

(@)

200951 A REBEE 5 F 8B
ML LAy —HipHE UNEEE
AERAR (—HAREBEMAK
NZARCHEE—RHBEREA
A190% [ & I 7 - m B B A
A A 2 B BR T A R R
BRIZE2HBRE BRER
59,900,000/ 7T ° & 4& £ 47 8 -
WEEEBEXN —BHETEEHR
2 HEBEHR A A F A /2009
F1A1BE 2 i o

F2009F2 A231 + 7N &% [E #2557
SR EEBRERAA(S
BNV —EHBZE  Z2AUR
8170,000,0008 T g XA & B
NIRKEEEBR A AL T MR
A"30% -+ KB R TR R E R R
BROASE T2 ETERRE SR
% [ % 17377,971,8008% B 15 X
fHeRiE EMARA - WEEEE
K—EHEARS FRAFBEHR
AN E B H B2009F2A20H 2 A
o o

&

42, LL B =
EROR T CEE Y E TR T
EAHBRLET AR UEALEEY

®

== 4t
B == °

Iz B PR 2 A ¢ 2008 F ¥
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43. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
(@) Key sources of estimation uncertainty
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which
are described in note 3, management has made certain key
assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimated uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that may have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as

discussed below.

(i) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
and prepaid lease payments

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset, which requires
significant judgement relating to level of revenue and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a
reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount,
including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of revenue and operating
costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could
result in additional impairment charge or reversal of

impairment in future periods.

43. EXE5TFIE R 5t 838

ERZEEER

(@) fAETABABERZEEER

RERBASEEEERK (FRME3)Z
BEF EEECRAEERMAHTHETE
AEzRREREMFZRRELET
BERER FHABRRAEFEERRNT
BT BREEHEERBEBE L REEE
HERAEZERNRAR 0T e

() V¥ BERRERHEE
1 718 6 (5
BEZANEHEEREFEER
EREEZESE EFHER
BB R AT 3R X8 G
ZEEReREFBRERE M
BRI R BRRIRE 5T
zeBzERENEEERR
ZHRERR  EPAHKAKE
MG ER A2 R AIE L EARHE-
AEBNAMBREERY AR
CeRESEMLE BREERS
BRA X ZRRIARE KA R
REBRAZEE -t cBE &
BRAREHEEZRMEEKNEAXN
FE YA REEWAERKPEG
REFEIMNBER S HEHRERD -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Bt 5 3R 3% B 5E

(Expressed in Hong Kong Dollars) (JA i 7T &t & )

43. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(i)  Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in few jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is

made.

(iijj Contingencies

Periodically, the Group assesses potential liabilities related
to any lawsuits or claims brought against the Group or
any asserted claims. Although it is typically very difficult to
determine the timing and ultimate outcome of such
actions, the Group uses its best judgement to determine if
it is probable that it will incur an expense related to the
settlement or final adjudication of such matters and
whether a reasonable estimation of such probable loss, if
any, can be made. In accordance with HKAS 37,
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,
the Group accrues a liability when it believes a loss is
probable and the amount of loss can be reasonably
estimated. Due to the inherent uncertainties related to the
eventual outcome of litigation, although the Group
believes that the estimates and judgements are
reasonable, it is possible that certain matters may be
resolved for amounts materially different from any

estimated provisions or previous disclosures.

43. EXE5TFIE R 5t 838

HEZEEEE #)

(a) fEETABABBERZETEEE
(4 )
(i) Frf#

AREEBHME T REERZF
GHR-BEEMSHERRTEME
HERHE FZ2RXZRAET
EEBE RSB B AEE R
RUE -AEEZRBEL HAE
S FE B TR 2 fh AT R TR AR A%
BERFEMEAZAB HZE
EHIREHG AR BRI R
ZEBRIRA ZEEZEBETE
& H B BORE B8 2 BT 15 B SR
FEWL TR 2

(i) BHEFFEE

AEBEHIFAEMNEBRLASE
BMigH Z AR A RN MER
HRZEBEABEBE - BE—RAE
BUMEREETECRER&ER
BR O ANEB KL & EH B
TEEEMBARZRIARZES
BEMEARS UWRETHZS
AIREEIE (WA ER A EMET -
BIBEE B G ERIFEI7HERH
REEERIEEE AEER
HiEEAMRELREBETIAE
B BEcERELEE - R
FRBEERNEZ T BERR
BEAEEEERHTRAGEBEAS
B DAgEmE TEEERR
CREAGTEBNREREES B
MBEBARER o
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43. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(iv) Oil reserves

Engineering estimates of the Group’s oil reserves are
inherently imprecise and represent only approximate
amounts because of the subjective judgements involved
in developing such information. There are authoritative
guidelines regarding the engineering criteria that have to
be met before estimated oil reserves can be designated
as ‘proven’ and ‘probable’. Proven and probable oil
reserve estimates are updated on regular intervals taking
into account recent production and technical information
about each ail field. In addition, as prices and cost levels
change from year to year, the estimate of proven and
probable oil reserves also changes. This change is
considered a change in estimate for accounting purposes
and is reflected on a prospective basis in related

amortisation of intangible assets rate.

Despite the inherent imprecision in these engineering
estimates, these estimates are used in determining
amortisation charges and impairment losses. The
capitalised costs of oil exploitation rights are amortised
using the units of production method based on the proven
and probable oil reserves. The useful lives are reviewed
annually in accordance with the production plans of the
Group and the proven and probable reserves of the oil
fields.

43. EXE5TFIE R 5t 88

HEEZEEEE #)

(a)

A TFHEERZEERE
(&)

(iv) BEHE#EE
ENRUEAER S REB G
AEBRARFEEZIRGATEER
RETNBREMY  WEBHEEEHE -
EhstABREENETERIER
FEIRIGEFEREI 2N FTE
BRETHBRIRBEZEZ RN
ol - KA KRB A AFE &
STAEHEN Wi AL EMA
RIEZ A ERBRMER - o
HABREKRAKFEIREZESE -
it ZFREEBRABREE 2@
T EHREH -REFEHM
T ORERRAGHEEEE
WIREHREERBMREBERL A
EEEER -

BEIRGIFERNEZ KRR
- B F AT AR FE R 5
ERNMRBERBE -EXCAHA
BRIER AR R S HE I 1 0m 2
NEEBMAEH AIERFR
RIBA K E 2 & E R 8 Kom R |
ZHEBARME#E SFRHM—

Ska
IN°
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43. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(v) Estimation of assets retirement obligations
Provision is recognised for the future decommissioning
and restoration of oil properties. The amounts of the
provision recognised are the present values of the
estimate future expenditure. The estimation of the future
expenditure is based on current local conditions and
requirements, including legal requirements, technology,
price level, etc.. In addition to these factors, the present
values of these estimated future expenditure are also
impacted by the estimation of the economic lives of oil
properties. Changes in any of these estimates will impact
the operating results and the financial position of the
Group over the remaining economic lives of the ail

properties.

Critical accounting judgement in applying the
Group’s accounting policies

In determining the carrying amounts of some assets and

liabilities, the Group makes assumptions for the effects of

uncertain future events on those assets and liabilities at the

balance sheet date. These estimates involve assumptions about

such items as cash flows and discount rates used. The Group’s

estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience

and expectations of future events and are reviewed periodically.

In addition to assumptions and estimations of future events,

judgements are also made during the process of applying the

Group’s accounting policies.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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43. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(b) Critical accounting judgement in applying the

Group’s accounting policies (Continued)

Recognition of share-based compensation expenses

The Company has granted share options to employees.
Management has used valuation model to determine the total
fair value of the options granted, which is vested and expensed
immediately on granted dates. Significant judgement, such as
risk free rate, dividend yield and expected volatility and
expectations of early exercise, is required to be made by
management as the parameters for applying the valuation
model. Accordingly, any changes to the variables adopted may

materially affect the estimation of the fair value of share options.
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